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Chairman’s Statement
FEME

As benefited from the new money lending business we commenced
in 2014, Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively as the “Group”) the Group recorded
an increase in revenue from HK$6.6 million for the year ended 31
March 2015 to HK$11.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2016.
However, as influenced by the unfavorable market condition and
economic downturn in Brazil and the PRC, the Group recorded a net
loss of HK$33.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2016, which
improved approximately HK$41.5% from the net loss of HK$56.5
million in the last financial year.

In view of the prolonged unstable global economy and retardation
on its recovery, we have been actively exploring new business
opportunities and fine tuning our business strategies from time
to time so as to increase our revenue stream and maximize our
shareholders’ value. Near the year end of the current financial year,
we disposed our travel agency business as we do not envisage that
the business will be able to turn around and contribute meaningfully
to the Group in the future. On the other hand, with our sufficient
working capital, we are now focusing on expanding our money
lending business in Hong Kong. In addition, the Group had entered
into two leasing agreements for leasing out approximately 10% (in
area) of the entire forest in Brazil, which is expected to generate
over HK$3.0 million revenue to the Group in the coming financial
year. We believe our forest in Brazil will be able to contribute positive
operating cashflow to the Group in the coming years.

| will like to take this opportunity to thank our staff, shareholders and
other stakeholders for their continued support to the Group during
this difficult time. We will review on the performance of our business
segments from time to time and continue to seek new business
opportunities with the view to diversify its business and improving
shareholders’ value.

Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2015/2016
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Financial Highlights

i/ v
B mE
2016 2015 Changes
—E-REF —E—RF BILIRE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Operating results R
Revenue (continuing operations) WA (FFELEEET) 11,316 6,596 71.6%
Loss attributable to the owners AARHEE AEMN
of the Company g ] (33,077) (56,508) (37.5)%
Financial position at year end RER 2B IERR
Property, plant and equipment Y2 - KB iR A 86,578 110,569 @1.7%
Intangible assets mIEE 94 94 -
Investment properties WA 24,702 24,778 0.3%
Cash and cash equivalents BehBRaEEY 59,258 50,141 18.2%
Net current assets MBEERE 88,813 112,296 (20.9)%
Total assets BEE 261,079 305,656 (14.6)%
Total interest bearing borrowings BN E = AR EEEEE
from independent third parties 23,344 24,234 (3.7%
Total borrowings from non-controlling  FF3% AR A% BR & E 4458
shareholder - 836 (100)%
Total liabilities BEE 149,248 156,097 4.4%
Equity attributable to the owners of PA/NCIE ZE DN ol 3
the Company 111,744 149,480 (25.2)%
Per share information BRER
Basic loss per share FREAREE
(Hong Kong cents) () (0.37) (0.74) cents fll (50.0)%
Per share information FRER 1.25 cents 1l 1.68 cents 1llI (25.6)%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B am M AT

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Group’s revenue increased from HK$6.6 million to HK$11.3
million for the year ended 31 March 2016. The total revenue
consisted mainly of sales of forestry and timber products and
interest income form money lending business. The Group’s net loss
after tax decreased from HK$56.5 million to HK$33 million for the
year ended 31 March 2016. The net loss for the current year was
mainly due to the increase in financial liabilities, the impairment loss
of the freehold land of the Group and the impairment loss of an
other receivable amounted to HK$11.6 million, HK$9.7 million and
HK$15.9 million, respectively.

BUSINESS REVIEW

China

The PRC is the world’s largest consumer and importer of timber and
logs and it continues to be the primary market for our forestry and
timber products. Demand for the Group’s timber products remains
sluggish in light of the continuous economic slowdown in the PRC.

Brazil

Business environment continued to be difficult for the Group in
Brazil. On 27 March 2012, the board decided to suspend harvesting
operations in the State of Acre, Brazil for one year and until the
operating environment for its Brazilian subsidiary improves. For the
financial year ended 31 March 2016, Acre’s operations remained
suspended. On 5 June 2014, the board of directors changed the
operation model in the State of Acre, Brazil from own harvesting to
leasing out the forest in Brazil so as to enhance the income stream
of the Group. In mid-March 2016, the Group, through its wholly
owned subsidiary, UTRB, entered into a licence agreement with
LaminadosTriunfoLtda (“LT”). LT is the largest harvesting company
established in Acre State and it owns processing timber, plywood
and sawmill facilities. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, LT
licenced the rights of harvesting 3,000 hectares during the 2016
harvesting season. The agreement will generate BRL 1 million in
revenue for UTRB, which will be payable in a 9 months installment.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, in late April 2016, UTRB
entered into another licence Agreement with Amazon Wood
Industrial Madeireira Ltda (“AW”). AW is a reputable company and a
regional player in the State of Acre, Brazil. The agreement with AW
was entered in late April. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement,
AW licenced the rights of harvesting the remaining 1,000 hectares
during the 2016 harvesting season. The agreement will generate
BRL 380,000 in revenue for UTRB, which will be payable in a 9
months installment. Under this agreement, AW will also acquire
the existing log stock. The Group will continue to actively identify
potential leases relating to the forest in Brazil.

Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2015/2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Hong Kong

In view of the poor operating environment of the travel and travel
related business, the directors do not envisage the business will
contribute meaningfully to the Group in the future, and therefore,
the Group entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement
on 23 March 2016 to dispose its entire 95% equity interest in Travel
Inn Limited to an independent third party at a cash consideration
of HK$1,800,000. The disposal was completed on 28 April 2016.
The directors consider that the disposal would allow the Group to
divest part of its investment portfolio so as to apply the proceeds
for the purpose of exploring other business opportunities. The
Group will review its business portfolio and investment strategy from
time to time and take appropriate action to enhance the financial
performance and position of the Group.

OUTLOOK

Uncertain market conditions and poor demand for timber products
continued to affect the Group’s near term outlook. The Group will
continue to identify new business opportunities with the view to
diversifying its business portfolio and improving Shareholders’ value.
The Company will give priority to consider any new investment
opportunity(ies) that can provide the Group with a stable revenue
stream as and when suitable opportunities arise.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had cash and cash equivalents that
amounted to HK$59.3 million (2015: HK$50.1 million).

The Group’s gearing ratio expressed as a percentage of total interest
bearing borrowings (including all interest bearing borrowings from
shareholders, non-controlling shareholder and related companies),
over equity attributable to the owners of the Company, increased
from 16.8% as at 31 March 2015 to 20.9% as at 31 March 2016.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had HK$23.3 million (2015:
HK$24.2 million) in interest bearing borrowings from independent
third parties of which HK$16.0 million (2015: HK$5.3 million) were
repayable within one year and the remaining HK$7.3 million (2015:
HK$18.9 million) were repayable after one year. As at 31 March
2016, the interest bearing borrowings of HK$23.3 million (2015:
HK$24.2 million) from the independent third parties consisted of
HK$11.6 million (2015: HK$12.8 million) in bank loans and HK$11.7
million (2015: HK$11.4 million) in other borrowings. As at 31 March
2016, the Group’s had net current assets of HK$88.8 million (2015:
HK$112.3 million). In addition, borrowings from a non-controlling
shareholder amounted to HK$Nil and HK$0.8 million as at 31 March
2016 and 2015, respectively.

B E A am M AT
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B R BN

FUND RAISING EXERCISES

@

As further detailed in the announcement of the Company
dated 27 February 2014 and the prospectus of the
Company dated 16 April 2014, the Company proposed
an open offer (the “February Open Offer”) to raise i) not
less than approximately HK$44.5 million and not more
than approximately HK$53.0 million before expenses
by the issue of not less than 139,173,247 and not more
than 165,665,906 new ordinary shares of the Company
(“February Offer Shares”) at a subscription price of HK$0.32
per February Offer Share to qualifying shareholders on the
basis of one February Offer Share for every ten existing
ordinary shares held on 14 April 2014 with bonus issue of
five bonus shares for every February Offer Share; and ii)
not more than approximately HK$1.7 million by the issue
of not more than 172,420,129 new convertible preferred
shares of the Company (“February Offer CPS Shares”) at a
subscription price of HK$0.01 per February Offer CPS Share
to qualifying holders of convertible preferred shares on the
basis of five bonus convertible preferred shares for every
existing February Offer CPS Share subscribed. The Directors
consider that the February Open Offer will strengthen the
Company’s capital base and enhance its financial position
and believes that the February Open Offer will provide the
qualifying shareholders with an opportunity to maintain their
respective pro rata shareholdings in the Company and to
participate in the future growth and development of the
Company. The closing price of the share of the Company
was HK$0.150 on 27 February 2014. The net proceeds
were intended to be used as to i) approximately HK$16.5
million for the repayment of the indebtedness of the Group;
ii) approximately HK$16.5 million for future investments
opportunities; and iii) approximately HK$9.6 million for the
general working capital of the Group.

As further detailed in the announcement of the Company
dated 12 May 2014, the February Open Offer became
unconditional and 139,179,601 February Offer Shares with
695,898,005 bonus shares, 150,867,613 February Offer
CPS Shares with 754,338,065 bonus convertible preferred
shares were issued on 13 May 2014. Up to 31 March 2015,
among the net proceeds of approximately HK$42.6 million
(representing a net price of approximately HK$0.296 per
February Offer Share and approximately HK$0.0093 per
February Offer CPS Share), i) approximately HK$16.5 million
had been utilised for repayment of the indebtedness of the
Group; ii) approximately HK$16.5 million had been utilised for
investment in new business; and iii) approximately HK$9.6
million had been utilised for general working capital of the
Group.

Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2015/2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As further detailed in the announcement of the Company
dated 9 October 2014 and the prospectus of the Company
dated 28 November 2014, the Company proposed an
open offer (the “December Open Offer”) to raise i) not less
than approximately HK$118.8 million and not more than
HK$123.7 million before expenses by the issue of not
less than 371,147,618 and not more than 386,428,602
new ordinary shares of the Company (“December Offer
Shares”) at a subscription price of HK$0.32 per December
Offer Share to qualifying shareholders on the basis of one
December Offer Share for every six existing ordinary shares
held on 26 November 2014 with bonus issue of seventeen
bonus shares for every December Offer Share; and ii)
not more than approximately HK$4.0 million by the issue
of not more than 402,313,634 new convertible preferred
shares of the Company (“December Offer CPS Shares”) at
a subscription price of HK$0.01 per December Offer CPS
Share to qualifying holders of convertible preferred shares
on the basis of one December Offer CPS Share for every six
existing convertible preferred shares held on 26 November
2014 with bonus issue of convertible preferred shares on the
basis of seventeen bonus convertible preferred shares for
every existing December Offer CPS Share subscribed. The
Directors consider that the December Open Offer will provide
the qualifying shareholders with an opportunity to maintain
their respective pro rate shareholdings in the Company and
to participate in the future growth and development of the
Company. The closing price of the share of the Company
was HK$0.133 on 9 October 2014. The net proceeds were
intended to be used as to i) approximately HK$80.0 million
for the expansion of money lending business in Hong Kong;
i) approximately HK$20.0 million for investment(s) in and/or
working capital for new business, including but not limited
to, catering business in Hong Kong as and when suitable
opportunities arise; and iii) approximately HK$17.9 million for
general working capital of the Group.

As further detailed in the announcement of the Company
dated 18 December 2014, the December Open Offer
became unconditional and 371,150,205 December Offer
Shares with 6,309,553,485 bonus shares, 402,313,634
December Offer CPS Shares with 6,839,331,778 bonus
convertible preferred shares were issued on 19 December
2014. Up to 31 March 2015, among the net proceeds of
approximately HK$117.9 million (representing a net price of
approximately HK$0.30716 per December Offer Share and
approximately HK$0.0097 per December Offer CPS Share),
(i) HK$80.0 million had been utilised for expansion of money
lending business in Hong Kong; (i) approximately HK$1.5
million had been utilised for general working capital of the
Group; and (jii) the rest of the net proceeds of approximately
HK$36.4 million had been placed in the bank deposits and
are intended to be utilised as expansion of money lending
business, investment in new business and the general
working capital of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B am M

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2016, property, plant and equipment of HK$NIl
(2015: HK$3.0 million) and investment properties of HK$24.7 million
(2015: HK$24.8 million) of the Group were pledged to secure bank
mortgages. As at 31 March 2016, certain area of the freehold lands
with carrying value of HK$21.4 million (2015: HK$23.9 million) was
filed with a precautionary injunction by a claimant.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND LITIGATIONS
The Group’s contingent liabilities and litigations at 31 March 2016
are disclosed in Notes 16 and 17 to this report.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK
The Group’s continuing operation mainly operates in Brazil, China
and Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, revenue from operations was
denominated mainly in Renminbi while its costs and expenses were
primarily in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and Brazilian Reais where
the Group’s operations are based. The Group is exposed to potential
foreign exchange risk as a result of fluctuations between those
currencies that are not pegged.

In addition, the main operational assets of the Group are located
and denominated in local currencies in Brazil and China while
the Group’s reporting currency is in Hong Kong dollars. This
also exposes the Group to potential foreign exchange risk upon
translation of those assets on each reporting date.

The Group did not enter into any arrangements or financial
instruments for the purpose of hedging against the potential
foreign exchange risks during the year under review. Management
believes that the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risks are
minimal since Renminbi has been in strength while Reais have been
weakening somewhat against US dollars during the current period.
In the event that Reais were to rise substantially against US dollars,
the risk can be mitigated by increasing local sales denominated
in Reais. As for the operational assets of the Group, any foreign
exchange gain or losses due to translation of the carrying value of
the assets to the Group’s reporting currency on reporting dates are
unrealised and non-cash in nature. As such, active hedging activities
are not considered warranted. Nonetheless, management will
monitor closely its foreign currency exposure to ensure appropriate
measures are taken promptly against any significant potential
adverse impact.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had approximately 15 employees
(2015: 15) mainly in Hong Kong, China and Brazil. The total
remuneration paid by the Group to its employees (including
directors) for the year was approximately HK$5.6 million (2015:
HK$5.0 million).

The Group rewards its employees according to prevailing market
practices, individual experience, performance and requirements
under applicable labor laws in the Group’s operational locations. In
addition to the provision of annual bonus, provident fund scheme
and medical insurance coverage, discretionary bonuses and share
options are also available to employees.
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The board of directors (“Board”) of Sustainable Forest Holdings
Limited (“Company”) has pleasure in presenting to the shareholders
of the Company (“Shareholders”) its annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company comprise
sustainable forest management; investment and leasing in natural
forests; manufacturing and sales of timber products including but
not limited to wooden door, furniture and wooden floor panels;
leasing of properties; the business of licensed travel agent under
the Travel Agents Ordinance (Chapter 218 of the Laws of Hong
Kong); and money lending business pursuant to the Money Lenders
Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31 March
2016 by geographical and business segments is set out in Note 6 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 40 to 41.

The Board does not recommend any payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$Nil per ordinary share and
HK$NIil per convertible preferred share).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the results and the financial position of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 160.

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS, PROPERTY, PLANTS AND
EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the biological assets, property, plant and
equipment and investment properties of the Group during the year
are set out in Notes 20, 17 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws of
the Company (“Bye-laws”) or laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 March 2016.

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group during the year are
set out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statement and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

On 31 March 2016, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
the distribution to owner of the Company calculated in accordance
with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended) was HK$Nil
(2015: HK$NIil).

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company (“Directors”) during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors (“Executive Director(s)”)

Mr. YEUNG Sau Chung (appointed on 5 June 2015)
(Chairman)

Mr. LIU Shun Chuen (appointed on 5 June 2015)

Mr. MUNG Wai Ming

Ms. ZHOU Jing (resigned on 17 November 2015)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
(“Independent Non-Executive Director(s)”)

Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN

Mr. WU Wang Li

Mr. NG Wai Hung

In accordance with Bye-law 87(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr. MUNG Wai
Ming and Mr. WU Wang Li shall retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-Executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Rules (“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) and the Company considered all of them to be
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Other than statutory compensation, no Directors proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 21 to 25.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors had engaged in or were interested in any
business which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at the date of this report, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong, “SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of the SFO; or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code (“Model Code”) for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Mr. YEUNG Sau Chung (Note 2) Beneficial owner 650,901,621 7.31%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

1. The percentage figures were calculated based on 8,910,119,449 ordinary shares
(“Shares”) of the Company having a par value of HK$0.01 each in issue as of the
date of this report.

2 Mr. Yeung was the registered holder of ordinary share warrants with nominal
value of HK$54,754,149.13 and convertible preferred share warrants with nominal
value of HK$2,157,945.67 convertible into 644,166,460 and 6,735,161 underlying
Shares respectively. Under Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Yeung was therefore interested
and deemed to have interests in 650,901,621 underlying Shares upon exercise of
the ordinary share warrants and convertible preferred share warrants.

3. Mr. Mung was entitled to share options to subscribe for a maximum of
52,316,838 Shares upon exercise of the options in full.

4. All interests stated above as at the date of this report represented long positions
of Shares or underlying Shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of the SFO or as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at the date of this report, the following persons, other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company, had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which
would be required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under

Section 336 of the SFO:

Report of Directors
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Approximate
percentage of
issued shares

shares held EERITR?D
B R4 & BABEDE
Name of Shareholders Nature of interest HERD 2 (Note 1)
RREEEB BEME KA RER (Hiit1)
Ms. Loh Jiah Yee, Katherine (“Ms. Loh”) (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 1,294,849,338 14.53%
ZRER+ ([#xt]) (H:72) REHAE 2 s
Mr. Lau Jack (“Mr. Lau”) (Note 3) Interest of spouse 1,294,849,338 14.53%
BRELE (TBxE]) (H73) Fe B
Assure Gain International Limited Beneficial owner/Interest of 1,256,270,910 14.10%
(“Assure Gain”) (Note 4) controlled corporation
Assure Gain International Limited BExnlAA/ ZRHEE 2 R
([Assure Gain|) (#7:#4)
Ocean Honor Limited (“Ocean Honor”) (Note 5) Beneficial owner 2,274,052,584 25.52%
Ocean Honor Limited ([Ocean Honor |) (A47:25)  EzEA A
Ms. Chan Man Ling (“Ms. Chan”) (Note 6) Interest of controlled corporation 2,274,052,584 25.52%

BReuer L+ ([RR&tl) (A:t6)
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

1.

The percentage figures were calculated based on 8,910,119,449 Shares in issue
as of the date of this report.

Ms. Loh was beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share capital of
Assure Gain, which held 100% of the issued share capital of Winner Global
Holdings Limited (“Winner Global”) and Splendid Asset Holdings Limited
(“Splendid Asset”) respectively. Ms. Loh was also beneficially interested in 50%
of the issued share capital of Corp Insights Holdings Inc. (“Corp Insights”) held
through Corporate Insights Limited. Assure Gain was the registered holder of
744,508,207 Shares and 2,485,386,889 convertible preferred shares (“CPS”) of
the Company convertible into 77,668,340 underlying Shares; Winner Global was
the registered holder of 213,360,741 Shares; Splendid Asset was the registered
holder of 220,733,622 Shares; and Corp Insights was the registered holder of
1,234,509,696 CPS convertible into 38,578,428 underlying Shares. Under Part
XV of the SFO, Ms. Loh was therefore deemed to have interests in 1,178,602,570
Shares and 116,246,768 underlying Shares upon conversion of the CPS in which
Assure Gain, Winner Global, Splendid Asset and Corp Insights were interested.

Mr. Lau, being the spouse of Ms. Loh, was deemed to have an interest in the
same parcel of the Shares and underlying Shares in which Ms. Loh was interested
under Part XV of the SFO.

Assure Gain held 100% of the issued share capital of Winner Global and Splendid
Asset respectively. Assure Gain was the registered holder of 744,508,207 Shares
and 2,485,386,889 CPS convertible into 77,668,340 underlying Shares; Winner
Global was the registered holder of 213,360,741 Shares and Splendid Asset was
the registered holder of 220,733,622 Shares. Under Part XV of the SFO, Assure
Gain was therefore interested and deemed to have interests in 1,178,602,570
Shares and 77,668,340 underlying Shares upon conversion of CPS in which itself,
Winner Global and Splendid Asset were interested.

Ocean Honor was the registered holder of 2,194,847,088 Shares and
2,534,575,896 CPS convertible into 79,205,496 underlying Shares. Under Part XV
of the SFO, Ocean Honor was therefore interested and deemed to have interests
in 2,194,847,088 Shares and 79,205,496 underlying Shares upon conversion of
the CPS.

Ms. Chan was beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share capital of
Ocean Honor. Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms. Chan was therefore deemed to
have interests in 2,274,052,584 Shares in which Ocean Honor was interested.

All interests stated above as at the date of this report represented long positions
of Shares or underlying Shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, the Company
had not been notified of any other persons (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which
would be required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares” above, during the year ended 31 March 2016, none of the
Director nor the chief executive of the Company had been granted
any right to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporation and
none of the Directors, their respective spouses nor their respective
children under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company or had exercised any such rights.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Shareholders
on 27 November 2009 (“Share Option Scheme”), the Company
may grant share options to the directors, employees, executive or
officers, managers, consultants, any customers, suppliers of goods
or services to any member of the Group or any entity in which any
member of the Group holds any equity interests (“Invested Entity”)
who, in the sole discretion of the Board, have contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the Group so as to
provide incentives or rewards for their contribution to the success of
the Group’s operation.

During the year, the movements in the share options under the Share
Option Scheme were as follows:

Number of share options
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BREHE
Outstanding Outstanding
at1 April at 31 March
2015 2016 Exercise
Nature of R-E-1f R-B-~F price
Name interest A-H Granted Exercised Lapsed =A=t-H Dateofgrant Exercise period per share
#A BEME HRATE 2R 2k BA¥ ERTE REHAH i BRITEE
Directors
%
Ms. ZHOU Jing Personal 52,316,838 - - (52,316,838) - 30 August 2013 30 August 2013 to HK$0.085
BExt A —2-=%\A=1H 29 August 2023 70,0857
T =F\A=1HZ
ZF-=FN\A=ThA
Mr. MUNG Wai Ming Personal 52,316,838 - - 52,316,838 30 August 2013 30 August 2013 to HK$0.085
FEMLE fHA —2-=E\A=tH 29 August 2023 5% 0.0857T
“2-S¥N\A=THE
“B-=£\A-ThA
Sub-total 104,633,676 - - 52,316,838
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

BB E (40

Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding Outstanding
at 1 April at 31 March
2015 2016 Exercise
Nature of R-B-1f R=B-RF price
Name interest A-H Granted Exercised Lapsed =A=t-H Dateofgrant Exercise period per share
#E BEME HRATE 2R 2 BA¥ HARTE REAH g BRTEE
Employees and other participants 117,731 = = = 117,731 13 January 2010 13 January 2011 to HK$1.497
EEREM2HE —Z-3F-f+=H 12 January 2020 B 14970
117,731 - - - 117,731 13 January 2010 13 January 2011 to HK$1.497
“2-Z5-A1=H 12 January 2020 14977
—F——%-A+=R%
“2-¥E-A+-R
17,731 - - - 117,731 13 January 2010 13 January 2013 to HK$1.497
—Z-3F-f+=H 12 January 2020 B A49TT
Z2-=%-A{+=R%
=2=2¢—H=H
176,331 - - - 176,331 7 May 2010 13 January 2011 to HK$1.131
“Z-ZFRAtA 6 May 2020 A 1131
“2—%-Bt=R%
ZE-ZERAKRA
176,331 - - - 176,331 7 May 2010 13 January 2013 to HK$1.131
—Z-TFhA4H 6 May 2020 B 1131
Z2-=¥-A1+=R%
“2-2ENAKA
176,333 - - - 176,333 7 May 2010 13 January 2013 to HK$1.131
—Z-TFRAtA 6 May 2020 A 1131
—5-=%-At=R%
“2-TERARA
125,565 = - = 125,565 14 September 2010 14 September 2010 to HK$0.597
—2-ZERATEA 27 November 2019 A% 0597
“2-ZENAATMAZ
—2-NEt-A=ttA
Sub-total 1,007,753 - - - 1,007,753
gt
Total 105,641,429 - - (52,316,838) 53,324,591
Fhy
Notes: Mt
1. The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the options 1. BN RBEEERER-—T—ZTF—A+=—AREERRZK
were granted on 13 January 2010 was HK$0.950. & &% %0.9507T
2. The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the options 2. BROREEBREN—_S—ZSERA+ABREE R Z KT
were granted on 7 May 2010 was HK$0.700. & A7%0.7007T °
3. The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the options 3. MM RBEERENR —Z—FFHA+HERBE BTzl
were granted on 14 September 2010 was HK$0.385. {8 /7% #0.3857T
4. The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the options 4. KR BEERENR -—ZT——F - A+ /\BHRBE BT 2K
were granted on 18 February 2011 was HK$0.415. T8 AE%0.4155T
5.  The closing price of the Share immediately before the date on which the options 5. BN BEEREA T —=FN\A=TBREE R ZK

were granted on 30 August 2013 was HK$0.034.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Summary of the terms of the Share Option Scheme is as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Purposes

The principal purposes are to recruit and retain high caliber
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to
the Group or any Invested Entity and to provide incentives
or rewards to Eligible Participants (as defined below) for their
contribution to the Group.

Eligible Participants

Any employees (whether full time or part time), directors
(including executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive directors) of any members of the Group or any
Invested Entity, any customer, supplier of goods and services
to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity and such
other persons or entities (“Eligible Participants”) who, in the
sole discretion of the Board, have contributed or will contribute
to the growth and development of the Group or any Invested
Entity.

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme must not exceed 10% of the total
number of issued Shares as at the date of passing the ordinary
resolution on 11 April 2012 (being the date on which the
mandate limit of the Share Option Scheme was refreshed). The
total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options granted is 53,324,591, which represented
approximately 0.60% of the total number of issued ordinary
Shares of the Company as at the date of this report for the year
ended 31 March 2015.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options (whether exercised or outstanding) granted
in any 12-month period to:

()  each Eligible Participant must not exceed 1% of the total
number of Shares in issue; and

(i) a substantial shareholder of the Company or an
independent non-executive director must not exceed
0.1% of the total number of Shares in issue and not
exceed HK$5 million in aggregate value.

Period within which the Shares must be taken up
under an option

An option must be exercised within 10 years from the date on
which it is granted or such shorter period as the Board may
specify at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must be
held

No minimum period for which the option has to be held before
it can be exercised is specified in the Share Option Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(g) Period open for acceptable of an option and amount
payable upon acceptance
An offer of grant of an option may be accepted by an Eligible
Participant within 28 days from the date of the offer of grant
of the option. A consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on
acceptable of the offer of grant of an option.

(h) Basis of determining the subscription price of an

option

The exercise price must be at least the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the date of grant; (i) the average closing
prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value of a
Share.

() Validity of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme has a life of 10 years and will
expire on 27 November 2019 unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

During the year, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company were entered into or existed.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 92.6% of the total sales for the year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to
42.2%. The Group had only one supplier which accounted for 100%
of the total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates or any
Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and/or five
largest suppliers.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2016 were audited by Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited (“Crowe
Horwath”) who retire and, being eligible, offer itself for reappointment
at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

On Benhalf of the Board

YEUNG Sau Chung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2016
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. YEUNG Sau Chung

Mr. YEUNG Sau Chung, aged 50, jointed the Group in June 2015 as
an Executive Director and a member of the Executive Committee.
He has more than 20 years experience in research and analysis of
investment portfolios and in risk management. He holds a Bachelor
of Arts degree in Accountancy from City University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Yeung will be responsible for the overall management of the
Company. Mr. Yeung was an executive director of Qingdao Holdings
International Limited (formerly known as HyComm Wireless Limited,
Stock Code: 499) and resigned on 20 November 2014.

Mr. LIU Shun Chuen

Mr. LIU Shun Chuen, aged 52, jointed the Group in June 2015 as
an Executive Director and a member of the Executive Committee.
He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration
from San Francisco State University, United States of America, and a
Bachelor degree in Estate Management from University of Reading,
United Kingdom, He has more than 15 years experience in property
development and investment in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Liu will
be responsible for the overall corporate strategy of the Company.
Mr. Liu was an executive director of Qingdao Holdings International
Limited (formerly known as HyComm Wireless Limited, Stock Code:
499) and resigned on 27 September 2014.

Mr. MUNG Wai Ming

Mr. MUNG Wai Ming, aged 583, joined the Group in January 2013 as
an Executive Director and a member of the Executive Committee.
Mr. Mung has more than 20 years’ experience in property and car
park management. He has accumulated extensive concept in the
operation management from his operation in different industries.
Mr. Mung worked in various industries including property trading,
financing, wedding witnesses, club management, car park operation
and foot massage etc. Mr. Mung is the chairman of Eli Car Park
Ltd. and director of Pure Massage Group Ltd. He was an executive
director of Perception Digital Holdings Limited (currently known as
Hongda Financial Holdings Limited, stock code: 1822) and resigned
in August 2014. He devotes himself in charity and was elected
as the member of the sixth standing committee of the Overseas
Congress of Yue Xiu District of Guangzhou, member of the forth
standing committee of the Overseas Congress of Qingxin District
of Qingyuan, member of Friends of Qing Yuan Association (H.K.)
Ltd. and founding chairman of International Industry and Commerce
Experts Association Ltd. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Mung did not
hold any other directorships in any other publicly listed companies
in the last three years and does not have any relationship with any
other Directors, senior management or substantial or controlling
shareholders of the Company. Mr. Mung is not a director or
employee of a company which has an interest in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERERERERE

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN

Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN, aged 50, joined the Group in
January 2013 as an Independent Non-Executive Director. He is
also the chairman and a member of each of the audit committee
(“Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) of the Board of the Company. Mr. Jacobsen is the
managing director of a licensed corporation to advise on corporate
finance matters. He has more than 20 years of experience in
corporate finance and business development. Mr. Jacobsen is an
independent non-executive director of abc Multiactive Limited (stock
code: 8131). He was the executive director of Auto ltalia Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited, stock
code: 720) and resigned in October 2015. He was the independent
non-executive director of Perception Digital Holdings Limited
(currently known as Hongda Financial Holdings Limited, stock code:
1822) and resigned in August 2014, and of HyComm Wireless
Limited (currently known as Qingdao Holdings International Limited,
stock code: 499) and resigned in September 2014, and of China
Financial Leasing Group Limited (stock code: 2312) and resigned in
April 2015. He was also an independent non-executive director of
King Stone Energy Group Limited (stock code: 663) for the period
from 26 September 2008 to 30 September 2011. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Jacobsen did not hold any other directorships in any
other publicly listed companies in the last three years and does not
have any relationship with any other Directors, senior management
or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr.
Jacobsen is not a director or employee of a company which has an
interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. WU Wang Li

Mr. WU Wang Li, aged 42, joined the Group in January 2013 as
an Independent Non-Executive Director. He is also a member of
each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee. He obtained his bachelor of commerce
degree from Deakin University, and has over 14 years of experience
in auditing and accounting profession and consulting services. Mr.
Wu is a director of Skywise Consultants Limited and is admitted
to the status of Certified Practicing Accountant of CPA Australia.
Currently, Mr. Wu is the director of Skywise Consultants Limited.
He was appointed as an independent non-executive director on
several listed companies in main board and growth enterprise
market in Hong Kong. He has appropriate accounting and related
financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules by virtue of his experience in accounting and financial
consulting services. Mr. Wu was the independent non-executive
director of Hao Wen Holdings Limited (formerly known as Everpride
Biopharmaceutical Company Limited) (stock code: 8019), King
Stone Energy Group Limited (formerly known as Yun Sky Chemical
(International) Holdings Limited) (stock code: 663), Talent Property
Group Limited (formerly known as Tomorrow International Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 760) and Qingdao Holdings International
Limited (formerly known as HyComm Wireless Limited, stock code:
499) and resigned in July 2009, January 2010, January 2011 and
September 2014 respectively. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Wu
did not hold any other directorships in any other publicly listed
companies in the last three years and does not have any relationship
with any other Directors, senior management or substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Wu is not a director
or employee of a company which has an interest in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. NG Wai Hung

Mr. NG Wai Hung, aged 53, joined the Group in February 2013 as
an Independent Non-Executive Director. He is also a member of
each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. He is a practising solicitor and a partner in
lu, Lai & Li, a Hong Kong firm of solicitors. Mr. Ng practises in the
areas of securities law, corporate law and commercial law in Hong
Kong. Mr. Ng is also an independent non-executive director of four
companies listed on Stock Exchange, namely Fortune Sun (China)
Holdings Limited (stock code: 352), Gome Electrical Appliances
Holding Limited (stock code: 493), Trigiant Group Limited (stock
code: 1300) and Tech Pro Technology Development Limited (stock
code: 3823). Mr. Ng was also an independent non-executive director
of Yun Sky Chemical (International) Holdings Limited (currently
known as King Stone Energy Group Limited, stock code: 663), KTP
Holdings Limited (currently known as Ares Asia Limited, stock code:
645), Tomorrow International Holdings Limited (currently known as
Talent Property Group Limited, stock code: 760), Perception Digital
Holdings Limited (currently known as Hongda Financial Holdings
Limited, stock code: 1822) and HyComm Wireless Limited (currently
known as Qingdao Holdings International Limited, stock code:
499) and resigned in February 2010, February 2011, January 2012,
August 2014 and September 2014, respectively. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Ng did not hold any other directorships in any other
publicly listed companies in the last three years and does not have
any relationship with any other Directors, senior management or
substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Ng is
not a director or employee of a company which has an interest in
the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Jairo Alfonso RAMOS SUAREZ

(Vice President of Field Operations)

Mr. Jairo Alfonso RAMOS SUAREZ, aged 45, is the vice president
of field operations of the Group. He joined the Group in November
2009. Mr. Ramos Suarez is a trained mechanical engineer, has
more than 16 years of experience in production, maintenance
programming, quality control, mechanical design, marketing and
procurement in tropical timber products and other materials. Mr.
Ramos Suarez was in charge of trading of forest products for a
private Columbian company in Shanghai, China from 2006 to 2008.
Mr. Ramos Suarez is responsible for the field operations in Acre.
Save as disclosed above, Mr. Ramos Suarez did not hold any other
directorships in any other publicly listed companies in the last three
years and does not have any relationship with any other Directors,
senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of
the Company. Mr. Ramos Suarez is not a director or employee of a
company which has an interest in the Shares and underlying Shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. Fabio Levi VIDIGAL

Mr. Fabio Levi VIDIGAL, aged 35, joined the Group in March 2011
as accounting and tax manager in Brazil. Since March 2012, Mr.
Vidigal has been serving as the legal representative of the Group’s
subsidiary in Brazil. He also proactively participated in the Group’s
forestry operation in Acre, Rondonia and Para, running corporate
and tax matters from Brazil headquarters in Sdo Paulo. Mr. Vidigal
has graduated with an international trade diploma and he holds
a MBA in Tax Law from Fundacédo Getulio Vargas and is also a
chartered accountant affiliated to the CRC S&o Paulo Chapter.
He has experience in working for multinational companies, having
a managerial role at Lufthansa tax department in Brazil. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Vidigal did not hold any directorships in any
other publicly listed companies in the last three years and does not
have any relationship with any other Directors, senior management
or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Vidigal
is not a director or employee of a company which has an interest in
the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Bruno DI GIULIO

Mr. Bruno DI GIULIO, aged 40, was the Group’s Legal Counsel
(Brazil affairs) and rejoined the Group in September 2014 as the
Group’s Head of Brazil. He sits in our Hong Kong headquarters
overseeing all subjects related to our Brazil operation. Mr. Di Giulio
is a Brazilian qualified Lawyer with more than 10 years of experience
in corporate and litigation matters. He has more than 5 years
experience in the forestry sector alone and in investments in Asia-
Brazil market. Prior to rejoining our Group, Mr. Di Giulio headed the
Brazil Desk at a leading Law firm in Hong Kong. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Di Giulio did not hold any directorships in any other
publicly listed companies in the last three years and does not have
any relationship with any other Directors, senior management or
substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Di Giulio
is not a director or employee of a company which has an interest in
the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company has applied
the principles of, and complied with, the applicable code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code (“the CG Code”) as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, except for the deviations
mentioned below:

Code Provision A.2.1

Under the Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. The roles of the chairman (“Chairman”) and
the chief executive (“CE”) of the Company are segregated and
are clearly defined to ensure their respective independence,
accountability and responsibilities. The Chairman is responsible for
the formulation of the Group’s overall business development policies
while the CE is responsible for the implementation of major decisions
of the Board and overall management of the Group’s businesses.

On 6 April 2011, Mr. LEUNG Chau Ping, Paul was re-designated
from the position as an executive director of the Company to a
non-executive director and resigned as the CE. Since then and
to up the date of this report, the position of the CE has not been
appointed. During the current financial year and up to 17 November
2015, Ms. ZHOU Jing acted as the Chairman. After the resignation
of Ms. ZHOU on 17 November 2015, the Chairman was acted by
Mr. YEUNG Sau Chung. During the current financial year when no
CE was appointed, the functions of the CE have been performed
by the Executive Directors with the assistance of the management
of the Company. The Board considers that such structure does
not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board
and the management of the Company. The Board will however
regularly review the effectiveness of this structure to ensure that
such structure is appropriate in view of the Group’s prevailing
circumstances.

Code Provision A.6.7

Under Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors
and non-executive directors should attend general meetings.
However, Mr. WU Wang Li was unable to attend the annual general
meeting held on 1 September 2015 in Hong Kong as he had another
business engagement.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance

practices to ensure that it continues to meet the requirements under
the Code Provisions.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

As at 31 March 2016, the Board comprised six Directors in total,
with three Executive Directors and three Independent Non-Executive
Directors.

Executive Directors:
Mr. YEUNG Sau Chung (Chairman)
Mr. LIU Shun Chuen
Mr. MUNG Wai Ming

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN

Mr. WU Wang Li

Mr. NG Wai Hung

There is no family or other material relationship (including financial
and business) among members of the Board. Composition of the
Board including the names and categories of Directors, is set out
on page 2. The brief biographical details of each Director are set
out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 21 to 25. Each Director possesses
the necessary expertise and experience and provides checks
and balances for safeguarding the interests of the Group and the
Shareholders as a whole. The Company has during the year ended
31 March 2016 maintained a balanced board composition.

During the year, the Independent Non-Executive Directors provided
the Group with a wide range of expertise and experience. Their
active participation in the Board and committee meetings brought
independent judgment on issues relating to the Group’s strategy,
performance and management process, taking into account the
interests of all Shareholders.

During the year under review, the Company has three Independent
Non-Executive Directors representing not less than one-third of
the Board. One of the Independent Non-Executive Directors, being
Mr. WU Wang Li, has the appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise as required
under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Company has received
from each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors a written
confirmation of his independence and has satisfied itself of such
independence up to the approval date of this report in accordance
with the independent guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.
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Board Meetings

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc
basis of at least four times a year to discuss the overall strategy as
well as the operation and financial performance of the Group, and
to review and approve the Group’s annual and interim results. Board
members are provided with all agendas and adequate information
for their review at least 3 days before the meetings. After the
meeting, draft minutes are circulated to all Directors for comments
before confirmation and sign-off. Minutes of board meetings and
meetings of board committees are kept by the company secretary of
the Company (“Company Secretary”) and are available for inspection
by any Director at any reasonable time on reasonable notice. Each
Director is entitled to seek independent professional advice under
appropriate circumstances at the expense of the Company. During
the year, 5 physical board meetings were held by way of telephone
conference. Attendance of each Director at the board meetings is set
out in the paragraph headed “Board Committees” below.

Responsibilities of the Board and Delegation of Work

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders for the development
of the Group with the goal of maximizing Shareholders’ value in
the long run. The Board also takes the responsibility for the overall
strategies and policies of the Group, approves and monitors the
strategic plans, investment and funding decisions, and reviews the
Group’s financial and operational performance. The Group’s day-
to-day operations and administration are overseen by the Executive
Directors and the management.

The Board is responsible for setting the strategic direction and
policies of the Group and supervising our management. Some
functions including the monitoring and approval of material
transactions, matters involving a conflict of interest for a substantial
Shareholder or Director of the Company, the approval of the interim
and annual results and other disclosures to the public or regulators
are reserved by the Board for consideration and approval. Matters
not specially reserved to the Board and necessary for the daily
management and operation of the Company are delegated to the
Executive Committee and management of the Company.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Directors are fully insured under the directors’ and officers’
liability insurance policy for indemnification against costs, charges,
losses, expenses and liabilities that may be incurred by them in the
execution and discharge of their duties.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

All members of the Board have participated in continuous
professional development through internal training provided
by the Company on various areas including, but not limited
to, the connected transaction, the Model Code and the duties
and responsibilities of Directors, so as to ensure that they have
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Group as well as fully aware of the responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and the relevant regulatory requirements.
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The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or
updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the
Company has been encouraging the Directors and senior executives
to enroll in a wide range of professional development courses and
seminars relating to the Listing Rules, companies ordinance/act
and corporate governance practices organised by professional
bodies, independent auditors and/or chambers in Hong Kong so
that they can continuously update and further improve their relevant
knowledge and skills. From time to time, Directors are provided with
written training materials to develop and refresh their professional
skills.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Every newly appointed Director will receive an induction package
from the Company Secretary on the first occasion of his/her
appointment, including materials briefly describing the operations
and business of the Company and the latest published financial
reports of the Company. Directors will be continuously updated on
any major developments of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good
corporate governance practices.

According to the Bye-laws, each Director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy shall be subject to re-election at the next following general
meeting or until the next following AGM in case of an addition to
the Board and shall then be eligible for re-election at such meeting.
Moreover, one-third of the Directors for the time being, (or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not greater than one-third), shall retire from office by rotation,
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific
term but excluding those holding office as Chairman or Managing
Director) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. Every Director holding the office of Chairman or
Managing Director shall be subject to re-election once every three
years. The rotating Directors who are subject to retirement and
re-election at the forthcoming AGM are set out on page 12.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as
a Director are available and accessible on the Company’s website at
http://www.susfor.com.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company adopted a board diversity policy during the financial
year ended 31 March 2016. The board diversity policy sets out that
the Company should endeavour to ensure that its Board members
have the appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives that are required to support the execution of its
business strategy and in order for the Board to be effective.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established four board committees, namely the
Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, to oversee particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the execution of
the Board’s responsibilities. All board committees have clear and
specific written terms of reference and they report their work to
the Board after each meeting. Copies of minutes of all meetings
and resolutions passed at the board committees are kept by the
Company Secretary.

Executive Committee

As at 31 March 2016 and the date of this report, the Executive
Committee comprised Mr. YEUNG Sau Chung (chairman of the
Executive Committee), Mr. LIU Shun Chuen and Mr. MUNG Wai
Ming. The Executive Committee was established with specific
written terms of reference to, among other duties, implement, review
and give recommendations to the Board on the daily operation of
the Group from the time to time. The Executive Committee held 1
meeting during the year. The attendance records of each member
are set out on page 32.

Audit Committee

As at 31 March 2016 and the date of this report, the Audit
Committee comprised three members, namely Mr. William Keith
JACOBSEN (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. WU Wang Li and
Mr. NG Wai Hung and all of them are Independent Non—- Executive
Directors. The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee
include making recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors, approving the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors,
reviewing and monitoring the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standard, developing and implementing policy on
the engagement of external auditors to provide non-audit services,
monitoring the integrity of the financial statements and the reports of
the Company, overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system
and internal control systems and developing and reviewing policies
and practices or corporate governance.

During the year, the Audit Committee held 2 physical meetings
by way of telephone conference. Two of the physical meetings
were held together with management and the external auditors.
The attendance records of each member are set out on page 32.
The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, reviewed the financial statements
for the interim and final results for the year ended 31 March 2016
and discussed the internal controls together with the management.

The Audit Committee and the Board have not taken a different view

regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the
external auditors of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Function

To comply with the requirements under the CG Code in respect
of responsibilities for performing the corporate governance duties,
the Board delegated its responsibilities to the Audit Committee
to develop and review the Company’s policy and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;
to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; to review and
monitor the Company’s policy and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and to review the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

The corporate governance policy is formulated with an emphasis
on the Board’s quality, effective internal control, stringent disclosure
practices and transparency and accountability to all shareholders
of the Company. The Board strives to comply with the code
provisions and reviews its corporate governance policy regularly in
order to maintain high standards of business ethics and corporate
governance, and to ensure the full compliance of our operations with
applicable laws and regulations.

During the year under review, members of the Board have reviewed
and discussed, among other things, the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance. They have also reviewed and
monitored the training and continuous professional development of
directors, and the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements as well as its disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

Remuneration Committee

As at 31 March 2016 and the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee comprised Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN (chairman of
the Remuneration Committee), Mr. WU Wang Li and Mr. NG Wai
Hung. The Remuneration Committee was established with specific
written terms of reference to, among other duties, review and give
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy of
the Directors and senior management. The terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee is available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company. The remuneration of all the
Directors and senior management is monitored by the Remuneration
Committee. To determine the emoluments of Directors, the
Remuneration Committee takes into consideration factors such
as salaries of directors paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors. The Remuneration
Committee ensures that no Director is involved in deciding his/her
own remuneration. During the year, the Remuneration Committee
held 1 physical meeting by way of telephone conference. The
attendance records of each member are set out on page 32. During
the year under review, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
existing remuneration policy and packages of all existing Directors.
Details of the Directors’ remuneration for the year under review are
set out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

LIl p A rart

TEERME

S ERBAE
RETEREATABETUETERERE ABE 2R
T EESCREERZBSHE MRNARAZ
CEREMHREFR IRNEFTSRHEEEZS:
R REREE AT EBNFIRSEEREE
B R RERARARERTAEREERTEIH
MBREER: € RO REREERES BT
ERINARFM (MB) : ARBI AR BETEE
ERTARBRAREREE ARENRKE -

HIEEREARRNEMERESTENEER AN
AR BB BREERME AR A2 BN
HBERE R EE- BB E T T AR EH
wa RERERBRAERSRENBRERRD
EER ULERARFRNEEEEETERNE
ISR

ROEFE EFxeXEeld kiw (EPEKE)
ARAMERERBRRRFER - HEND RS RE
KREENRIIRFEERRRE  RAQBEETE
BREERENENBRREESR UEEARERE
AMEPANE-

FMESS
RICE—RFZA=+T—BRAREAH FHE
BEemERELL (FMEESTRE) RAEXE
RREHEEER - ARREKIFMES S - WA
EHFIAEBERE (AP EEEMBE)  ARE
EXheREEEBzHMBR Rt mESSEMH
HEER -FMEE S 2 B E N R A
REE - 2REERGRERAB ZHMALH
MEEEER NETEF2HNE THE8S
BEEEZ GIMAEL R AR 2 EEHMKF -
EEMAERMKHARESE -FMHERESRFEMESE
F2ERERG ZHMW - NFR HFHEESEIUE
AEHEN BT REE - BKEB 2 HFEERERN
FRE -REBEFE FHZE eI 2RNEES
ZBRBHFMBEREFE - EFNEBFEZMEF
BER R E M RARM T3

KRMEZERERAT « 22— FHF —T—AFFR

31



32

Corporate Governance Report
/\AL& Paras \

1E 3k /l:lilﬁ&m

Nomination Committee

As at 31 March 2016 and the date of this report, the member of
Nomination Committee comprised Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN
(chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. WU Wang Li and Mr.
NG Wai Hung. The Nomination Committee was established with
specific written terms of reference to, among other duties, give
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment, re-appointment and succession planning for the Board
members. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The Nomination Committee has the responsibility to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and to identify individuals
suitably qualified to become members of the Board in accordance
with the board diversity policy. It is also responsible for assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors and making
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning
for directors. During the year, the Nomination Committee held 2
physical meetings by way of telephone conference. The attendance
records of each member are set out on below. During the year under
review, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size
and composition of the Board and reviewed the objectives set for
implementing the board diversity policy.

The individual attendance records of each Director at the physical
meetings of the Board, Executive Committee, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee and at the
general meeting of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2016 are set out below:
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Number of physical meetings attended/held during his/her tenure

REEHARLRE BT 28H8E
Executive Audit  Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting
BEpA - HITZEEE ERZES FMZEES REZES RRAE
Mr. YEUNG Sau Chung BEREE 3/3 11 N/A N/A N/A 11
NEH TER NER
Mr. LIU Shun Chuen BEEEE 3/3 11 N/A N/A N/A 11
TER TEA T#EA
Mr. MUNG Wai Ming SEREE 5/5 11 N/A N/A N/A 11
NER TER NER
Ms. ZHOU Jing AELt 212 N/A N/A N/A N/A 11
T TEA TEA T#EA
Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN HEELE 5/5 N/A 212 11 212 11
A
Mr. WU Wang Li Ro\BRAE 5/5 N/A 212 11 212 01
T
Mr. NG Wai Hung REEEEE 5/5 N/A 2/2 11 2/2 11
i
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2016.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016, in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) and the applicable disclosure requirements of the Listing
Rules. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have
adopted IFRSs and suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistency, made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair
and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis. No material uncertainties relating to any events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern were identified by the
Directors during the course of preparing and reviewing the financial
statements for the year under review.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditors of the Company
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 36 to 39.

External Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the fees in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided to the Group by the external auditors
amounted to approximately HK$910,000 (2015: HK$1,143,000) and
HK$50,000 (2015: HK$462,000), respectively. The non-audit service
fees for the year 2015 mainly consisted of fees in relation to open
offers.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board, recognising its overall responsibility in ensuring the
system of internal controls of the Group and for reviewing its
effectiveness, is committed to implementing an effective and sound
internal control system to safeguard the interests of shareholders
and the assets of the Group. Procedures have been designed
to safeguard assets against unauthorised used or disposition, to
ensure the sufficient allocation of resources and manpower and
the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or for publication, and
to ensure compliance with applicable law, rules and regulations.
The procedures provide a reasonable but not absolute assurance
and prevention of material untrue statements or losses, as well as
management on the interruption of the Group’s management system
and risks existing in the course of arriving at the Group’s objectives.
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The audit committee reviewed the overall effectiveness of the
internal control system and reported its findings and made
recommendations to the Board. The Directors have conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system
for the year ended 31 March 2016. The Board will continue to
assess the effectiveness of internal controls by considering reviews
performed by the audit committee and executive management.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavors to provide its Shareholders accurate,
clear, comprehensive and timely information of the Group via the
publication of annual reports, announcements and circulars as well
as through the Company’s website. The Board resolved to adopt
a Shareholders’ communication policy. The policy aims to set out
the provisions with the objective of ensuring that the company’s
Shareholders, both individual and institutional Shareholders, and,
in appropriate circumstances, the investment community at large,
are provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company and its subsidiaries
(including its financial performance, strategic goals and plans and
governance, etc.), in order to enable the Shareholders to exercise
their rights in an informed manner, and to allow the Shareholders and
the investment community to engage actively with the Company.

The AGM is a useful forum for the Board to communicate directly
with the Shareholders. The Directors, senior executives and external
auditors make their best effort to attend the AGM of the Company to
answer any questions from the Shareholders.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedure for Shareholders to convene a special general
meeting

Shareholders can submit a requisition to convene a special general
meeting pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Act”). The number of Shareholders necessary for
a requisition shall be representing not less than one-tenth of the
Company’s paid-up capital as at the date of requisition having the
right to vote at the general meeting.

The written requisition must:
—  state the purposes of the special general meeting;

—  be signed by all the requisitionists (may consist of one or
several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists); and

-  be deposited at the Company’s office in Hong Kong for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a special general
meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, any themselves
convene a special general meeting, but any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the said
date.
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Procedure for Shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meetings

Shareholders can submit a requisition to move a resolution at an
annual general meeting pursuant to Section 79 of the Act. The
number of Shareholders necessary for a requisition shall be:

—  representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all Shareholders having at the date of requisition a right
to vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates; or

- not less than 100 Shareholders.
The written requisition must:

- state the resolution, with a statement not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in the proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at the meeting;

—  be signed by all the requisitionists (may consist of one or
several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists);

—  be deposited at the Company’s office in Hong Kong for the
attention of the Company Secretary not less than six weeks
before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution and not less than one week before the meeting in
case of any other requisition; and

—  be deposited with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in giving notice of the resolution and
circulating the statements of the proposed resolution to all
Shareholders in accordance with the requirements under the
applicable laws and rules.

Enquiries to the Board

The Company’s website provides email address and telephone to
enable the Shareholders to make any enquiries and concerns to the
Board. Shareholders may send their enquiries by post or by email to
the attention of the Company Secretary who will direct the enquiries
to the Board for handling.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 March 2016.

On Behalf of the Board

YEUNG Sau Chung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2016
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Crowe Horwath.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO
THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 40 to 160, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Except for the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence as
explained below, we conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement. Because of the matters described in the basis
for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, however, we were not able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.
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Basis for disclaimer of opinion

i)

Scope limitation - fair value of biological assets and
change in fair value of biological assets

Our audit opinion dated 29 June 2015 on the Group’s financial
statements for the last year ended 31 March 2015 was disclaimed
because we were unable to obtain sufficient information to verify
the reasonableness of the assumptions and the feasibility of the
business plan based on which the valuations for the biological assets
and goodwill at 31 March 2015 were performed. Accordingly, the
carrying amount of biological assets of HK$Nil, goodwill of HK$Nil
and interest in subsidiaries of HK$118,592,000 in the company level
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015, and the change
in fair value of biological assets of HK$16,197,000, recognized in the
profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2015, and impairment of
amount due from subsidiaries of HK$41,644,000 recognized in the
company level profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2015 were
qualified in the 2015 audit opinion. Any adjustments that might have
been found to be necessary in respect of these matters would have
material consequential effects on the net assets of the Group and the
Company brought forward from 31 March 2015 and the Group’s loss
for the current year ended 31 March 2016 and the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements.

As set out in notes 21 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company engaged an independent valuer
to perform the valuation of fair value of the biological assets and
valuation of the fair value of the business value for sustainable forest
management as a cash generating unit.

We were unable to obtain sufficient evidence to satisfy ourselves as
to whether the assumptions adopted by the valuer in these valuations
were appropriate. Whether the cash generating unit (“CGU”) of the
sustainable forest management is able to generate future economic
benefits to the Group is dependent on the feasibility of the future
business plan provided by the Company. We were unable to obtain
sufficient information to verify the reasonableness of the assumptions
and the feasibility of the business plan based on which the valuations
were performed, and accordingly, we were unable to satisfy ourselves
as to whether the fair value of the biological assets of approximately
HK$NIl, the carrying amount of goodwill HK$Nil and interest in
subsidiaries of approximately HK$122,308,000 as at 31 March 2016,
and whether the impairment of amount due from subsidiaries of
approximately HK$6,024,000 recognized in the company level profit
or loss for the year ended 31 March 2016 were free from material
misstatement.
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i)

Furthermore, due to the outbreak of Zika virus in Brazil and heavy
rains in the region where the Group’s biological assets are located,
as referred to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements,
no physical count was performed for the biological assets as at
year ended 31 March 2016. There were no other alternative audit
procedures that we could adopt to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding the existence, quantities and conditions of the
biological assets as at 31 March 2016.

Any adjustments that might have been found to be necessary in
respect of the above matters would have material consequential
effects on the net assets of the Group and the Company as at 31
March 2016, and the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended and the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

Our opinion on the current year’s consolidated financial statements
is also modified because of the possible effect of the above matters
on comparability of the current year’s figures and the corresponding
figures.

Scope limitation - recoverability of the freehold land and
interest in subsidiaries

Included in the property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$86,578,000 in the consolidated statements of financial position as
at 31 March 2016 were three parcels of freehold land of approximately
HK$85,508,000, which are held by a subsidiary and located in Amazon
regions of Brazil. As set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company engaged an independent
valuer to perform the valuation of the freehold land for assessing the
recoverability of the freehold land, on which the Group’s biological
assets are located, and the interest in subsidiaries of HK$122,308,000
as at 31 March 2016.

The valuation method used was the direct comparison method,
based on which, the fair value of the freehold land at 31 March 2016
was estimated to be approximately HK$85,508,000 (equivalent to
BRL39,985,000). However, there were no comparable transactions
of freehold land in the similar locations in Brazil, where the Group’s
three parcels of freehold land are situated, after June 2014 and the
downturn of the Brazil's economy and the subsequent significant
decline in the selling price of timber might have affected the fair value
of the freehold land. The valuer has exercised significant subjective
judgement in deriving the estimated fair value of the freehold land as
at 31 March 2016. We were unable to obtain sufficient information
to verify the basis of assumptions adopted for the valuation of the
freehold land at 31 March 2016 and accordingly, we were unable to
satisfy ourselves as to whether the carrying amount of the freehold
land of approximately HK$85,508,000, deferred tax liabilities of
approximately HK$29,025,000 arising from the freehold land, and the
interest in subsidiaries of HK$122,308,000 as at 31 March 2016 and
the impairment amount of HK$9,700,000 freehold land and reversal
of deferred tax liabilities of approximately HK$5,545,000 recognised
in the profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2016 were free from
material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Our audit opinion dated 29 June 2015 on the Group’s financial
statements for the last year ended 31 March 2015 was also qualified
on the same scope limitation. Any adjustments that might have been
found to be necessary in respect of the above matters would have
material consequential effects on the net assets of the Group and the
Company as at 31 March 2016 and 2015, and the Group’s loss for the
two years then ended 2016 and 2015 and the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.

iii) Scope limitation - trade and other payables

Included in the trade and other payables of approximately
HK$24,003,000 in the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2016 was trade payable of approximately HK$22,410,000
(equivalent to BRL10,478,000) which was subject to an interest for
overdue payment at the rate of 1% per month. During the audit of
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2011, the related trade creditor confirmed that no interest was billed
to the Group. Therefore, the Group has not accrued interest for
overdue payment. However, due to the non-reply to our confirmation
request, absence of new information of the trade creditor, and no
other sufficient appropriate documentary evidence to prove that no
interest shall be required to be accrued on the overdue trade payable,
there were no other alternative audit procedures that we could adopt
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to verify the existence,
completeness and accuracy of the trade payable as at 31 March 2016.
Accordingly, we were unable to satisfy ourselves as to whether these
amounts were fairly stated in the financial statements as at 31 March
2016.

Our audit opinion dated 29 June 2015 on the Group’s financial
statements for the last year ended 31 March 2015 was also qualified
on the same scope limitation. Any adjustments that might have been
found to be necessary in respect of the above would have material
consequential effects on the net assets of the Group at 31 March 2016
and 2015 and the Group’s loss and cash flows for the two years then
ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, and the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

Disclaimer of opinion

Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion paragraphs, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. In all other respects, the consolidated financial statements have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 30 June 2016

Leung Chun Wa
Practising Certificate Number P04963
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

l\‘/—.l—\ g L ZES
HE _f—/\i_ﬂ =+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2016  (LAB¥27%) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2016 2015
—E-RF —hF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Kzt BT T BT
Continuing operations FEREER
REVENUE PN 7 11,316 6,596
Cost of sales THER A (1,820) (2,957)
Change in fair value of investment KENMENTEEZY
properties 20 (76) 1,079
Other income H At A 8 79 8,430
Other net loss H th B518 % 58 8 (11,598) (38,722)
Selling and distribution costs SHE M SHAK A ) (89)
Administrative expenses T (10,579) (13,556)
Impairment of assets BERE ) 2l 9 (25,571) =
Change in fair value of biological W& BN A B ) REH & R
assets less costs to sell 21 - (16,197)
LOSS FROM OPERATIONS TR (38,255) (55,416)
Finance income BB WA 203 366
Finance costs A B (564) (1,304)
Net finance costs B E B FFE 10(8) (361) (938)
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION FRBi AT B 18 10 (38,616) (56,354)
Income tax Fris#i 15(a) 5,545 (53)
Loss for the year from continuing REFEKEEB 2
operations EER %a (33,071) (56,407)
Discontinuing operations BRIEREERTE
Profit/(loss) for the year from REBRIMHGEEER 2
discontinuing operations FERA/ (EER) 11 2 (97)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEFIE (33,069) (56,504)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: FEAL
Owners of the Company ZIN/NGIEZZE N (33,077) (56,508)
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR AN 8 4
(33,069) (56,504)
Loss attributable to owners of RARIHEE AELERRE :
the Company arises from:
Continuing operations FELCE R (33,079) (56,411)
Discontinued operations BRI ST 2 97)
(33,077) (56,508)
Loss per share BREE 17
From continuing and REFERCRILLCEEL
discontinued operations
- Basic —HK (0.37) cents (0.74) cents fll
- Diluted —#E (0.37) cents 1l (0.74) cents fli
From continuing operations REFELSEEL
— Basic —EK (0.37) cents 1l (0.74) cents 1l
- Diluted —#E (0.37) cents 1l (0.74) cents 1lli
The notes on pages 47 to 159 form part of these consolidated financial %47E§%1 598 2 MFERER It 4R & W 15

statements.

RZ2—HD
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

A = —
ReEBEmkEMEERE
HE—T—RF=A=+—HI-FE Forthe year ended 31 March 2016  (LAJE# 27%I|]) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2016 2015
—E-REF =E=snas
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i3 BT T BT T
Loss for the year FEEIE (33,069) (56,504)
Other comprehensive loss for FREMZEER
the year
Items that may be reclassified HE B DR B o
subsequently to profit or loss EHH
Exchange differences on translation ~— 12E 25\ B X 2181 53k &
of financial statements of ELZIELERE
overseas subsidiaries 15(c) (5,026) (15,921)
Other comprehensive loss for FREMEEEE HBRFAEH
the year, net of income tax (5,026) (15,921)
Total comprehensive loss for FRAEZHEEEEE
the year (38,095) (72,425)
Total comprehensive loss attributable SA T A + fE{L 2 T B 1848458 :
to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE7 Y =N (38,103) (72,429)
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR AN 8 4
(38,095) (72,425)
Total comprehensive income RATEEAELEEREETER
attributable to owners of B:
the Company arises from:
Continuing operations FE R E TS (38,105) (72,332)
Discontinued operations BRI ST 2 97)
(38,103) (72,429)

The notes on pages 47 to 159 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.

FATEEF1598 2 MBI F4R 4 BTSSR
R2Z—Hme
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Sra IR

HEZZT—R"F=A=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2016  (LAJE# 27%1|]) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2016 2015
—NE —3n4E
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
HtaE BT T BT IT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment e RN 18 86,578 110,569
Intangible assets mEE 19 94 94
Investment properties LB 20 24,702 24,778
Biological assets EYEE 21 - =
Goodwill i 22 - -
111,374 135,441
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 24 73 806
Loan receivables W E K 25 82,338 93,612
Trade and other receivables FEURE 5 5RI8 K E b & IR 26 4,339 25,656
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEEY 27 59,258 50,141
146,008 170,215
Assets of disposal group classified SERFEFEZHEHEANEE
as held for sale 12 3,697 -
149,705 170,215
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBERE
Trade and other payables FEE 5 5008 & E A FE 5 5/ IE 28 40,749 49,580
Loans and borrowings EXxkEE 29 16,042 5,283
Provision for taxation T IR 31(@) 2,145 2,220
Amount due to non-controlling FEAT FEHE AR AR 3R SR IE
shareholder 41(b) - 836
58,936 57,919
Liabilities of disposal group classified 7 %8 A5 {EFE 2 HEHRIE E
as held for sale 12 1,956 -
60,892 57,919
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 88,813 112,296
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT  REERABAE
LIABILITIES 200,187 247,737
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

re BRI R

HE—T—RF=A=+—HI-FE Forthe year ended 31 March 2016  (LAJE# 27%I|]) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2016 2015
—E—REF —FT—AF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Kz BEET T ST T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Loans and borrowings ERREE 29 7,302 18,951
Financial liabilities A& 32 52,029 40,595
Deferred tax liabilities EERIAEE 31(b) 29,025 38,632
88,356 98,178
NET ASSETS EEFE 111,831 149,559
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARR#EE
Share capital [N 33 185,656 185,631
Reserves {1 35(a) (73,912 (36,151)
Total equity attributable to the RATEEAELEESR
owners of the Company 111,744 149,480
Non-controlling interests IR R 35(a) 87 79
TOTAL EQUITY MRS 111,831 149,559

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 June

2016.

On Behalf of the Board

YEUNG Sau Chung
BHET
Director

EF

The notes on pages 47 to 159 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.

HESFER T R"FRA=THEHAERE

T

KEE=FS

LIU Shun Chuen

Bz
Director

EF

SFATEEFE1598 7 B F47 A M 5R

Rz —H5
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

raE

HEZT—X \i:ﬂ =+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2016

HE N\ /gy
/ N\ /o

BER

Attributable to the owners of the Company

(LAE#27%1]) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ARFRENEE
Shares
held by the
Company for
settlement of Capital Exchange Non-
Share acquision ~ Confributed  Distributable  redemption fluctuation  Share opion  Accumulated controling
Share capital premium  consideration surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests  Total equity
\al
i )
s Ry s Lt Bh RAREEE EXRIRE  BREER 2t I ERES s
Notes HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK§'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BETT  #ETn mRTT AETR #RTR AR ARTR afTn AT AkTn aTn #TR
At 1 April 2014 RZF-BEMA-H 29,005 U (115,920) 2,885,431 2216 8,000 (49,776) 1,660 (2,701,927) 58,723 75 58,798
Change in equity for 2015 “F-R5REED
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - - - (56,508) (66,508) 4 (66,504)
Exchange difierences on translaton of financial 8 INHEL FBHE 2
statements of overseas subsidiaries EXZE - - - - - - (15,921) - - (15.921) - (15.921)
Total other comprehensive income E2ERALE - - - - - - (15.921) - - (15921) - (15921)
Total comprehensive loss for the year rEREAERER - - - - - - (15.921) - (56,508) 72429 4 (72425
Transaction with owners LU A
Issue of new shares in connection with the
February Open Offer 336) 17403 28643 - - - - - - - 46,046 - 46,046
Shares issue upon exercise of ordinary share
warrants 33 - 6 - - - - - - - 6 - 6
Issue of new shares in connection with the
December Open Offer 139223 (16:432) - - - - - - - 122791 - 122,791
Share issue expenses - (5,657) - - - - - - - (5,657) - (5,657)
Forfeiture of share option < - - - - - - (475) 475 - - -
Totaltransactions with owners ni}’ﬁ N2 25488 156,626 6,560 - - - - - 475) 475 163,186 - 163,186
At 31 March 2015 RZF-2§=A=1-H 185,631 6,504 (115,920) 2,885,431 2216 8,000 (65,697) 1,185 (2,757,960) 149480 7 149,559
Attributable to the owners of the Company
LINGE N
Shares
held by the
Company for
settlement of Capital Exchange Non-
Share acquisiion ~ Contributed ~ Distributable  redemption fluctuation  Share option ~ Accumulated controling
Share capital premium  consideration surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests  Total equity
TRAR
AR
s RigE REFRER FHER TUSRER BARDEE EXRORE  RRERR ZitER Nt FERER s
Notes HK§'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BRI BRI BT ARTT AR BRI BT BT BRI AETL AETT BT
At 1 April 2015 R-F-15MA-R 185,631 6,504 (115,920) 2,885,431 2216 8,000 (65,697) 1,185 (2,757,960) 149480 7 149,559
Change in equity for 2016
Loss for the year - - - - - - - - (33,077 (33,077 8 (83,069
Exchange differences on translaton of financial & &N
statements of overseas subsidiaries 3521 - - - - - - (5,026) - - (5,026) - (5,026)
Total other comprehensive income Et2ERALE - - - - - - (5,026) - - (5,026) - (5,02)
Total comprehensive loss for the year TFE2EE - - - - - - (5,026) - (3307 (38,103 8 (38,095)
Transaction with owners HEFNETIRS
Shares issue upon exercise of ordinary share R AR
warants Bkt 330 2% 342 - - - - - - - 367 - 367
Forfeiture of share option RNERE - - - - - - - 316) 316 - - -
Total transactions with owners REFARTIRHEE % 342 - - - - - (316) 316 367 - 367
At 31 March 2016 RZE-AEZA=1+-R 185,656 6,936 (115920) 2,885,431 2216 8,000 (70,723) 869 (2,790,721) 11,744 87 111,831

Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2015/2016




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

/\\/ x fﬁﬂimﬁ#%

HE—T—XRF=A=F+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2016 (LA, 25I) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2016 2015
—E-XEF =
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i3 BT T BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING R&X¥KBEELRE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation BrAEATEE
Continuing operations FE 5T (38,616) (56,354)
Discontinued operations EAR IE T 2 9
Adjustments for: BT RE:
Change in fair value of investment KEMENTFEES
properties 20 76 (1,079)
Finance costs B E & 10(@) 564 1,329
Finance income EE WA 10(@) (203) (366)
Impairment of property, plant and Y% B KRR RE
equipment 9 9,700 -
Impairment loss on other receivables  E fth fE UL/ TE 2R (BB 18 9 15,871 -
Depreciation e 18 421 504
Change in fair value of financial MBBEATES
liabilities 32 11,587 38,612
Reversal of write down of R B 1F EMOR SRR
inventories, net - (58)
Waiver of loan interest B E T B 8 = (4,046)
Exchange difference, net PE =R F R (900) 107
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRB AR Z W 8 - (4,234)
Change in fair value of biological EMEEATFESBREEMRA
assets less costs to sell - 16,197
Operating loss before changes in RITBEESEEH 2
working capital KEEE (1,498) (9,379)
Decrease in inventories FERL 733 2,994
Decrease in trade and other FE W B 5 3R I8 K H A LK
receivables R 3,914 12,628
Decrease in amount due to JE A< FE%E AR AR R SR 3B R
non-controlling shareholder - (399)
Decrease/(increase) in loan EWE R, (38h0)
receivables 11,273 (93,612)
Decrease in trade and other FET B 5508 R H A FERT FRIE
payables R (4,340) (12,865)
Cash generated from/(used in) BEERRA (RH)BEL
operations 10,082 (100,633)
Income tax paid EfFRE
- Hong Kong Profits Tax paid = EH% B AIEH — (75)
- PRC Enterprise income tax paid — BB ZETEH - =
- (75)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ REEBBRLSFRAN (Fd) B8
(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 10,082 (100,708)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

rafR L mER

HEZZT—R"F=A=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2016  (LAJE# 27%1|]) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2016 2015
—NE —4E
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
HtaE BET T BT IT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZHRER
ACTIVITIES
Payment to acquire property, plant B2 - B &M 2 5K
and equipment (48) @)
Net cash outflow from acquisition of ~ WEEHI B A &) 2 IR &7 H/F 58
subsidiaries 36(a) - (©))
Net cash outflow from disposal of B E B ARRE R L FE
subsidiaries 36(b) - @)
Interest received B FE 10(@) 203 366
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RETHRERAFRE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 155 349
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING @& FHRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Repayment of loans and borrowings B SR LEE (429) (422)
Repayment of amounts due to BIR e AR R RKIE
shareholders - (13,410)
Repayment of promissory note EEANEE - (6,782)
Interest paid EfTFIE (240) (931)
Proceeds from share issue upon S Hﬂ“? SR ITIR D 2
exercise of share warrant FriS sk I8 214 7
Proceeds from share issue ? 17 fo’ﬁzﬁﬁ 1SRIE - 168,837
Share issue expense BITRMO 2 = (5,657)
NET CASH (USED IN)/ METBHRS (R FRAFHE
GENERATED FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (455) 141,642
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH B¢ kB &S @Y FE
EQUIVALENTS 9,782 41,283
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FHIR&ERBELZEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 50,141 8,965
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE [ER#5 s /&
RATE CHANGES (5) (107)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FABRESRELZEY
END OF YEAR 277 59,918 50,141
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH R&RBEEBYLEFZ AT
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEFED 27 59,918 50,141
The notes on pages 47 to 159 form part of these consolidated financial %475§%1SQEZ MIEEtE At 4R & B 53R

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre MBS HRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HZE—ZT—A~"F=A=1+—HIEFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and its ordinary
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of its registered
office and the principal place of business is Suites No. 302-305, 3rd
Floor, Sino Plaza, 255-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong
Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company comprise
sustainable forest management; investment and leasing in natural
forests; manufacturing and sales of timber products including but not
limited to wooden door, furniture and wooden floor panels; leasing
of properties; the business of licensed travel agent under the Travel
Agents Ordinance (Chapter 218 of the Laws of Hong Kong); and
money lending business pursuant to the Money Lenders Ordinance
(Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements had been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
accounts also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Listing Rules.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs which are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company. Note 4 provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BTSRRI

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE_Z - F=HA=+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHBERXHUE
POLICIES

(a) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (a) MBREFREE

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2016 comprise the Group.

ltems included in the financial statements of each entity in the
Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), rounded to the nearest thousand except
for per share data. Hong Kong dollar is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the biological
assets, the warrants and investment properties are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out in Notes
3(9), 3(y) and 3(2) respectively.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and major
source of estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 5.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T e BTSRRI R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HZE—ZT—A~"F=A=1+—HIEFE

3. FEEFEERME (5
(b) MELRRIFERER

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealized
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there
is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and
the owners of the Company. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE_Z— R F=HA=+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling
and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect
the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (Please
refer to Note 3(i)), unless the investment is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of business are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of
the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the
Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs
are generally recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values, except that:

e adeferred tax asset or liability and assets or liabilities related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS
19 Employee Benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T e BTSRRI R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HZE—T—A~"F=A=1+—HIEFE

3. FEEFEERME (5
(c) %ﬁAﬁU@

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Business combinations (Continued)

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognized immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on
the basis specified in another IFRS.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year
from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, or IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

AR 3% B8 % B 765 3 5 2 R S5 5557
FHEGEFRDEERD KL
EBENERREFEZEE
(I EAR) TR EZER

He

EERTUMEERE mREL 2
I FEFE RS 5 IA R UREE T A
LA A 2 IR A g 2 A E
(ZnAE ) Z HaH0 B Fr U iE vl 3% 7
BEHEMAZEGERKEB AR ZF
M ERE - WS BT
Fris B o] 3% 5 E E TR E B ER
hGASR-tdes crah i E L =
WA BE S 2 A FEIE p iz £ 5B A
R A=A 2 WU EE 5 i e
2®$@<WEHHWDW%%%
BRESTRREZERE R

EBIREHAERD M TERAA
RRRNBREIZLLHINHERFE
EZ s Al ) SR R FE
FRYER I S D (5 AR RE T AT R RIS
éFE% REF BT E 5T E

HERFHEIFMIELERE K
W@WZ#Tk%\WEQ¥@%
REAMBRP RS ERTRH &
% (WER)FTE-

HAREERNER A o s (B
BRIARELFELZEELR
B HAREREEBARQFE
A EYE ARERS P ERN
B8 IAREZRAFEE
BN EERERFTERHE 1
B E  WIAR B L AR
E-tEHREER[GHEH] (T
B R —F) ARG
BRENBBRMFESERBRL
BINEMMEL ZFHE -

TRHEERELHERARZ IR
REATEZHRR I ARITAA
BURMR AR BIAI DR - DI
a2 IARETENERRER
HIE#TE MARN ZREA
REZAAR - DBEABEEXAR
ZHRARERIEER S5 4§5H§%39
S TR R R EXBER

SHAERIEI7IR M iﬁﬁfﬁi
REE (ER) RERRE RS
EtE MARZBER BT HE

o

KRMEZERERAT « 22— FHF —T—AFFR

51



52

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Y A

N

BT RaR BT o

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE_Z - F=HA=+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Business combinations (Continued)

Where a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to its
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is
recognized in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that
interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(Please refer to the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination. A cash-generating unit to which goodwiill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. If some or all of the goodwill allocated to a cash-
generating unit was acquired in a business combination during
the current annual period, that unit shall be tested for impairment
before the end of the current annual period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit pro-rata based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit
or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HZE—ZT—A~"F=A=1+—HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (e)

3. FESHEHERBE®

Freehold land is measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost
of freehold land acquired in a business combination is the fair
value as at the date of acquisition.

Freehold land and construction in progress are not depreciated.

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses
(Please refer to Note 3(j)):

—  property, furniture and fixtures, machinery, engineering and
other equipment, and motor vehicles

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located, and an appropriate proportion of production overheads
and borrowing costs.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful life as follow:

Property Over the lease term
Furniture and fixtures 5-10 years
Machinery, engineering and other equipment 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers
from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of
foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised
in profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

®

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties,
plant and equipment are classified to the appropriate categories
of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
Intangible assets, other than goodwill, identified on business
combinations are capitalised based on their fair values.

Intangible assets acquired by the Group are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite)
and impairment losses (Please refer to Note 3(i)). Expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of patent with finite useful lives is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over its useful lives of 6 years.
Amortisation of outstanding sales contract with finite useful life
is charged to profit or loss based on the percentage of revenue
recognised on the contract.

Trademark has an indefinite useful life.

Money lending license will not be amortised until its useful life is
determined to be finite, but subject to impairment test annually.

Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Biological assets

Biological assets are living plants involved in the agricultural
activities of the transformation of biological assets into
agricultural produce for sale or into additional biological assets.
Biological assets are measured at fair value less costs to sell
at initial recognition and at each reporting date. The fair value
less costs to sell at the time of harvest is deemed as the cost of
agricultural produce for further processing, if applicable.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets held by the Group under leases which transfer to the
Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as being held under finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases, with the following exception:

Land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair
value of which cannot be measured separately from the fair
value of a building situated thereon at the inception of the
lease, is accounted for as being held under a finance lease,
unless the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the lease is the
time that the lease was first entered into by the Group, or
taken over from the previous lessee.

(ij) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged as an expense in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

(9)

(h)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE_Z - F=HA=+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(i) Impairment of assets
(i) Impairment of receivables

Current and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
or amortised cost are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtors;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

— it is becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtors.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

—  For trade receivables and other current receivables,
loan receivables and other financial assets carried at
amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets carried at amortised
cost share similar risk characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial
assets which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decrease and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in
respect of loan receivables and trade receivable included
within trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade receivable directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;
- intangible assets;
—  goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash generating unit).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE_Z - F=HA=+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continueq)
—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying amount of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if

determinable).

—  Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is

not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the

reversals are recognised.

(iiij) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange, the Group is required to prepare an interim
financial report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim Financial
Reporting , in respect of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria
as it would at the end of the financial year (Please refer to

Notes 3(i)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates. Consequently, if the
fair value of an available-for-sale equity security increases
in the remainder of the annual period, or in any other
period subsequently, the increase is recognised in other

comprehensive income and not profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

0

(k)

V)

(m)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and, where
applicable, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition,
is determined on the first-in first-out basis. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write down
of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write down
of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts,
except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts
(see Note 3(j)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

Preferred share capital

Preferred share capital is classified as equity if it is non-
redeemable, or redeemable only at the Company’s option, and
any dividends are discretionary. Dividends on preferred share
capital classified as equity are recognised as distributions within
equity.

Preferred share capital is classified as a liability if it is redeemable
on a specific date or at the option of the shareholders, or
if dividend payments are not discretionary. The liability is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policy for interest
bearing borrowings set out in Note 3(l) and accordingly dividends
thereon are recognised on an accruals basis in profit or loss as
part of finance costs.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE_Z - F=HA=+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance
with Note 3(r)(i), trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of
maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows.

Employee benefits

() Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

(i) The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees
in Hong Kong. Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the rules.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
a percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with rules of the central
pension scheme.

Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2015/2016

3. TESTHEERME &)

(n)

(0)

(p)

EBNESREREMENSRIE
FEA & 5 2R 08 F H b FE < FRIE T %)
TN FERER o FRARIE M EE3(n ()
SATEZHBEREEIN ENES
FRIE N E A A< 2R 08 1% 32 S AR
B BR - MERGIR 2 22 ZE BT f B I Bk
G AL IS I T 3R Ak AR (B B B o

ReERBTESEY
RehReEEYRBRITRTE
B RHRThEMSREET
O ARAIBER AR D MR L
RekBAAZBEXEEBZHE
% ARBAR=EARNIEBZE
HeRBRE mEeReRER
MmE ARERKEENREXNAEE
B ERAKE D 2 |RITES IFAT
EREMREFEYMZ B0 -

EEER

() *ERIESHEFIR FEFE MK
Rk st Bl
e FELEL FHFER.
A1 E BE A R IR A BB K
FIFEW |z 2 A TN ER
REBREREGEEARNRE
EENAKEREMEEBNE
R RZEFSRIERET
BE o

AEERERFE LTSS
ROIREMBEBRERER
e RABAME ([RED
FTEl]) - RIBBIBEERFE 2R
Al - BERHEB S BBRE
AT 2 Lo Rt At &I H it
R REEN BB S8 2 M
—RERRBEAEERRE
FRK - AR B B AR
BB RRIEEESINE
W EE 2 PREKREFT
2 -MBARARETERA
AT AN AP RRKEE
TEH AR - RN RIEH KR
KT8 R R BIHARE (B 72
1Bas R

(ii)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(p) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Share-based payments

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share option reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial option pricing
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the share options, the total estimated fair value of
the share options is spread over the vesting period, taking
into account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year under
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the share option reserve
until either the option is exercised (when it is transferred to
the share premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).

Share options granted to consultants

Share options granted to consultants in exchange for goods
or services are measured at the fair values of goods or
services received, unless that fair value cannot be reliably
measured, in which case the goods or services received
are measured by reference to the fair value of the share
options granted. The amounts are recognised as expenses,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve), when the Group obtains the goods or when the
counterparties render services, unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits
and when it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE_Z - F=HA=+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(q)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also
arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided that those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of
the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(q)

Income tax (Continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 3(z), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date unless the property is depreciable and
is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale. In all other cases,
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company
or the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

() Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities
(i) Financial guarantees issued

(ii)

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse
the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss
the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value
of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. The fair value of financial
guarantees issued at the time of issuance is determined
by reference to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction
for similar services, when such information is obtainable,
or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged by
lenders when the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantee not been available, where reliable estimates of
such information can be made. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with Note
3(r)(iii) if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee,
and (i) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Contingent liabilities assumed in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
which are present obligations at the date of acquisition
are initially recognised at fair value, provided the fair value
can be reliably measured. After their initial recognition at
fair value, such contingent liabilities are recognised at the
higher of the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation where appropriate, and the amount that would
be determined in accordance with Note 3(r)(iii). Contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination that cannot be
reliably fair valued or were not present obligation at the date
of acquisition are disclosed in accordance with Note 3(r)(iii).
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
() Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (Continued)
(iij) Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

(s) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

U}

(i)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered at the customers’ premises or agreed
point of delivery which is taken to be the point in time when
the customer has accepted the goods and the related risks
and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added
tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

(iiij) Rental income from investment properly

Rental income receivable from investment property is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(s) Revenue recognition (Continued)

®

(iv) Service income
Service income is recognised upon services in respect of
the sales of air tickets, hotel accommodation and other
travel related products are provided.

Commission income, handling charge and late charge
revenues are recognised when earned.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Items of statement
of financial position, including goodwill arising on consolidation
of foreign operations acquired on or after 1 April 2005, are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 April 2005 is translated at the foreign
exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition of the
foreign operation.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation or a partial disposal of an interest in an associate
that includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation that does not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For
all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2015/2016

3. TESTHEERME (&)

(s)

®

WATER (&)

(iv) RHWKA
AR 7 U A R 4R 1 75 B 6H & 1
= EEERE R E MR
R RIGIETER -

BEWA  FEE AR E
YA TR R B A BERR

HNERE
FRETZINERZRR P B 258
REXRBE - USNEIEL TR S
EXRAEE ﬁ¢%XZL%ETW
H-EXABIN B AER

RIBIE 2 PR A5t 83 PASNE 3 BB AL

ZHEBEERBE THRANK
Z AR ERERRE BN FE

5B S LAONE B (B 2 SE A E I
& Tj%ﬁﬁﬂﬁzﬁﬂqz%% -
Az ExinE

VEINETS 2 2B THIRER 5 B A

FRE R FEF 2 [E R A EEE - B
%#ﬁ%ﬁﬁ(@%ﬁéﬁm:?
TR E A — B AR IREE 2 FIh
EBMEEZAE)IRRELSRR
2T NEE [E R A % o FT 15
HIE N =R 2 E S iR
I FIRATE R SN P 2 i s P
Rt AR _ZEZRFMNA—H
BIAZBIINEREELEZEHE &
?ﬁ%&ﬁ%%%%a@%Zﬁ%

R E—HEINER (B EARE
BN —HEINRT TR 2 R
HEFRKER—RBIEBINEK
ERZHBRR 2 EF R ER
BERABDHMBINER 2
o EFRERENSREREE)
B I A Sz BEB R R T Rat
ZARBER AEBHRESZRGE
HoBaEE-

AN S EHE R RIS H RE
SNERS 2 BT WG AR E L
EZMIBR R 2 EHIREm S - R
Bl L 2 RETIE X = BB EHRE
PRI R R S T N EIB S AR FE AR o
ER—YEMBREITLE (BB
ETSREAEBLEEATEN
zwg@7>&mmrm2§ﬁ
BN E=smENHEAEER-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(u) Borrowing costs

(v)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are interrupted or completed.

Related parties
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

()  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

() The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE_Z— R F=HA=+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(v) Related parties (Continued)

(b) (Continued)
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vij A person identified in (a)() has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(vii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

(w) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the board of
directors of the Company (the chief operating decision maker)
for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

(v)

@

Shares held by the Company for settlement of
acquisition consideration

The Company issued shares and held them on behalf of the
vendor for the settlement of acquisition consideration payable to
the vendor in future years upon meeting of net profit guarantee
by the vendor in connection with acquisition of its Originate Tech
Global Investments Limited and its subsidiaries. The shares,
valued at HK$0.414 per share, before share consolidation
effective from 2 October 2013, including any directly attributable
incremental costs, are presented as “Shares held by the
Company for settlement of acquisition consideration” and
deducted from total equity. As a result of the failure to meet net
profit guarantee by the vendor as per the acquisition agreement,
these shares are held by the Company awaiting disposal by the
Company. Proceeds recovered from the disposal of these shares
shall be returned to the Company.

Warrants

Warrants issued by the Company that will be settled by other
than a fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments are derivative financial instruments.
Warrants classified as derivative financial instruments are
recognised at their fair values at the date of issue. Changes in
fair values in subsequent periods are recognised through profit or
loss.

Investment properties

Investment property is property held either to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale
in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Investment property is measured at cost on initial recognition and
subsequently at fair value with any change therein recognised in
profit or loss.

(aa) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued

operations

(i) Non-current assets held for sale
A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held
for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying amount will
be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is available
for sale in its present condition. A disposal group is a group
of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those
assets that will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the above
criteria for classification as held for sale are met, regardless
of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in
the subsidiary after the sale.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(aa) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations (Continued)

(i

(i)

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-
to-date in accordance with the accounting policies before
the classification. Then, on initial classification as held for
sale and until disposal, the non-current assets (except for
certain assets as explained below), or disposal groups, are
recognised at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this
measurement policy so far as the financial statements of
the Group and the Company are concerned are deferred
tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial
assets (other than investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures) and investment properties. These assets,
even if held for sale, would continue to be measured in
accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in note 1.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset is
classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale, the non — current asset is
not depreciated or amortised.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale (see (i) above), if earlier. It also
occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented on the face of the statement of profit or
loss, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the
disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s) constituting
the discontinued operation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised IFRSs issued by the ISA.

Amendments to
IAS 19

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

Amendments to
IFRSs

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle

Amendments to
IFRSs

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current year has
had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies which are
described in Note 3, management has made certain key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, as described below.

(a) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group management determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. It could change significantly as
a result of technical innovations and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, or it will write off or write down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold.
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5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)
(b) Impairment of freehold land

Determining whether the freehold land (Note 18) is impaired
requires an estimation of their recoverable amount at the
reporting period end. As own harvesting operation for the
forest on the freehold land had been suspended since March
2014, the independent professional valuer cannot validate the
feasibility of the leasing for the forest on the freehold land (Note
21), in light of the lapsed memorandum of understanding for
leasing out certain small portion of the forest in the past. The
independent professional valuer considered and adopted the
direct comparison method under the market approach to be
appropriate in determining the fair value for the freehold land of
the Group, with reference to the expert opinion of its Brazilian
forest engineer on the naked farm land. However, based on
the available information, there have been no comparable
transactions for the freehold land of the Group since June 2014.
The Brazilian forest engineer used some past historic price data
and the asking prices in certain sampled advertisements for the

naked farm land summarized below:

—  Historic price date maintained at certain institutions with
price ranges from BRL50 to BRL1,200/hectare, which were

largely not updated since 2014; and

—  Asking price per hectares in certain sampled advertisements
ranging from BRL150 to BRL650 per hectare around the

reporting period end.

The independent professional valuer and its Brazilian engineer
determined the average naked land to be BRL489.60 per hectare
based on which they had exercised significant judgement by
making an adjustment factor in arriving at the average unit
fair value for the Group’s freehold land at BRL866.25 per
hectare or a total fair value for the freehold land of the Group at
BRL39,985,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$85,508,000) at
31 March 2016 (Note 18) and accordingly, the Group recognized
an impairment for the freehold land amounting to approximately
HK$9,700,000 to the consolidated income statement for the year

ended 31 March 2016.

If the estimation for the fair value of the freehold land were
different from the market value, the actual impairment would be

significantly higher than the estimate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

(c)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses on trade and other
receivables resulting from inability of the customers or debtors
to make the required payments. The Group bases the estimates
on the ageing of the trade and other receivables, customer or
debtor credit-worthiness, and historical write off experience.
If the financial condition of the customers or debtors were to
deteriorate, actual write off would be higher than estimates.

(d) Impairment allowances on loan receivables

(e)

The Group has established impairment allowances in respect
of estimated incurred loss in loan receivables. The allowances
on loan receivables are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

In determining individual impairment allowances, management
considers objective evidence of impairment. When a loan is
impaired, an individual impairment allowance is assessed by
a discounted cash flow method, measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The quantum of the allowance is also impacted by
the collateral value and this, in turn, may be discounted in certain
circumstances to take into account the impact of forced sale or
quick liquidation.

In determining collective impairment allowances, management
uses estimates based on historical experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment
similar to those in the portfolio adjusted for current conditions.

The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the
amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to
reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience.

Write down of inventories

Inventories are written down to net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Write
down of inventories are recorded where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be realised.
The identification of write downs requires the use of judgements
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amount of
inventories and write down of inventories in the periods in which
such estimate has been changed.

sre ISR R M
HE-T AT=A=t BL&E

B3 R B ()

fhEt TABRERER 2 T ERR ()
M,ggﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂEWﬁﬁ

(d) EREN

(e)

AEBGBHRATEPREBAENX
AR M B R R E 5508 M
H{th YRR 3R 2 R E B 1R » AR
S THIR R MR 5 BB e EL At R UK
RIRZ KR TEREBAZER
KB 2 MR FCERE T AT o e =
PEBA M BN EE  BER
ZMERRE R SR AR B

HERE R

AR B R M S R A At EE A 2 B 1
1 R RR (B R 45 - B W& R B 0
B IS RA 25

REETE B BB E R (s - IR EE
BREZ TBERE B REIRR
B - @ AIrE R REANE
ERIRER M - A B E 2 FREE K&
BREBRMNRFEEEARAIE SR
BIREZERE - BRBEIHA
NEEHm 2 EBEMTE MES
THEAT ERREERESR TN
Irig - et g d h E A ER

By 488
a7 X

NETERA BRI EREE
RIRIEARIDERE SERSEILAR
R AL FRAERR AE
ZBEERIEE 2 G BRRTE
RIEHBE -

e ARARBR S RE B REHE 2T
SRR B ERAT T BRTE  LARIRE
BAFRERBELR 2 EME
Be

FE 2w
FELREFE 2 ZHED 2
T MWORZE Al B3R FE - B L
(REAEIE JiE N1 Tk 97
IR R & WO TF & - HORLZ B
Bl 75 22 {50 PR 1) T 2 At - i TR £
Rufbst ARl B EhZa MM
AHRFEZCREERFEREZM
Rl ©

KRMEZERERAT « 22— RHF —T—AFFR

73



74

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z_—%

B HRR M T

e = HEFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

®

(9)

(h)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has been
impairment of goodwill in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 3(). The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units are determined based on fair value less costs of disposal
calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates and
assumptions made by management on the future operation of
the business, and other assumptions underlying the fair value
less costs of disposal calculations.

Impairment loss of intangible assets

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has been
impairment of intangible assets with indefinite useful life. In
the event that the carrying values of the intangible assets are
higher than their recoverable amounts (i.e. the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use), impairment loss
is recognized. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units are determined based on fair value less costs of disposal
calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates and
assumptions made by management on the future operation of
the business, and other assumptions underlying the fair value
less costs of disposal calculations.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that are
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

(i)

Fair values of biological assets

Management estimates at the end of the reporting period the
fair value less costs to sell of biological assets with reference to
market prices and professional valuations. Unanticipated volatile
changes in market prices of the underlying agricultural produce
could significantly affect the fair values of these biological assets
and result in fair value re-measurement in future accounting
periods.

The Group’s forestry business is subject to the usual agricultural
hazards from fire, wind and insects. Forces of nature such
as temperature and rainfall may also affect harvest efficiency.
Management considers adequate preventive measures are in
place and the relevant legislation under forestry laws in Brazil will
assist in minimising exposure. Nevertheless, to the extent that
un-anticipated factors affecting harvestable agricultural produce
may result in re-measurement in future accounting periods.

Any material change in cost of revenue, log price, discount rate,
quality conditions and quantity of trees, and the harvesting year,
will affect the fair value of biological assets.
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Fair value at Relationship of unobservable
Description 31 March 2016 Valuation technique Unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
R-E—%<%
= i e = 4
Bt AFE EERM TAREGAYE THBEERASBRATEZBR
Biological assets HKSNil Discounted cash flows  Cost of revenue The higher the cost of revenue, the
lower the fair value
EMERE BETT ERAENE WABAR WABAR H - A E R BYE
Log price The higher the log price, the higher
the fair value
R B AMERERE A TEABR

Discount rate

LR

Harvesting year

WA EH

Quality condition and
quantity of trees

BAEERRARHE

The higher the discount rate, the
lower the fair value

BRZER N TEABE

The longer the harvesting period, the
lower the fair value

WRESHR RN FERBE

The higher the quality conditions and
quantity of trees, the higher the fair
value
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5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 5.

(Continued)

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)
(i) Fair values of biological assets (Continued)
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At TR E 2 T ERIR (&)
) £YEELFEE)

Fair value at Relationship of unobservable inputs
Description 31 March 2015 Valuation technique Unobservable inputs to fair value
RZZ-h8%F
= Rl= el
Eidis AVHE fhE R T BRE\HE o BREARBEATE BE
Biological assets HKSNIil Discounted cash flows  Cost of revenue The higher the cost of revenue, the
lower the fair value
ENBE BETL REBEERE WARKK WAKT R R TEABE
Log price The higher the log price, the higher
the fair value
AW B AMERES ATEAES

Discount rate

The higher the discount rate, the
lower the fair value

BH X RRZEE A TEABE

Harvesting year The longer the harvesting period, the
lower the fair value

BE % Wk EEER RTERBE

Quality conditions and The higher the quality conditions and

quantity of trees quantity of trees, the higher the fair
value

BAZEMR R E BABEMABBREEHS DT
ERES

() Revenue recognition () UzrER

The Group assesses its business relationships with customers
and determines that it is acting as an agent in the majority
of transactions relating to the sales of air-tickets, hotel
accommodation and other travel related products, and
accordingly report those revenue on a net basis.

(k) Estimates of fair value of investment properties

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at the end of
the reporting period by an independent professional valuer. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions which are subject
to uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual results.
In making the judgement, the Group considers information from
current prices in an active market for similar properties and uses
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing
at the end of the reporting period.
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ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

() Fair value of warrants
The directors of the Company use their judgement in selecting
an appropriate valuation technique to determine fair value of the
warrants which are not quoted in an active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners are applied.
The fair values of these warrants are determined at the end of
the reporting period with movement in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. In estimating the fair value of these warrants, the
Group uses independent valuation which is based on various
inputs and estimates. If the inputs and estimates applied in the
model are different, the carrying amount of these warrants will
change. The carrying value of the warrants at 31 March 2016 was
HK$52,029,000 (2015: HK$40,595,000).

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised
by a mixture of both business lines (products and services) and
geography. In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the board of directors (“Board”) (the chief
operating decision maker) of the Company for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following reportable segments. In 2015, the Group
commenced a new segment, i.e. money lending, as a result of the
acquisition of subsidiaries as disclosed in Note 36(a), to diversify its
business and to broaden the base of revenue. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

Continuing Operations

Sustainable forest management: sustainable management of and
investment in natural forests; timber and wood processing; trading and
sales of forestry and timber products.

Manufacturing and sale of timber products: manufacturing and sales
of timber products including but not limited to wooden doors, furniture
and wooden flooring.

Leasing of properties: lease of premises to generate rental income and
to gain from the appreciation in the property values in the long term.

Money lending business: earn interest income from financial assets
through the money lending licence.

Discontinuing Operations

Travel and travel related business: provision of travel agency services
such as booking of air-tickets, hotel accommodation and other travel
related products.
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6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

In accordance with IFRS 8, segment information disclosed in this
consolidated financial statements has been prepared in a manner
consistent with the information used by the Board of the Company
for the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources among segments. In this regard, the Board of the Company
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all non-current assets and current assets
attributable to an individual reportable segment with the exception of
certain unallocated corporate assets including unallocated cash and
cash equivalents.

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than current,
deferred tax liabilities, financial liabilities, promissory notes and other
unallocated corporate liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

Segment profit/(loss) represents the profit earned by/(loss) from each
segment without allocation of central administration cost such as
director’s salaries and other head office or corporate administration
costs, change in fair value of financial liabilities, unallocated corporate
income and unallocated interest expense.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning the profit
earned by/(loss) from each segment, the Board is provided with
segment information concerning revenue (including intersegment
sales), interest income and expense from cash balances and
borrowings managed directly by the segments, depreciation,
amortisation and impairment losses and additions to non-current
segment assets used by the segments in their operations.
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. DEHE (&)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (@) PWEE EERAEE
An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment is reported below: REBEFTEMRMAIRED 2 HHTHA
i
2016
ZB-RF
Discontinuing
Continuing Operations Operations
BREEER BRILEEEE
Manufacturing Travel and
Sustainable and sale travel
forest of timber Money Leasing of related
management products lending properties Sub-total business Total
WHE BER R M
AHER HEAHER B NEEE it REER it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETR BETR BETT BETT BETT BETR
Revenue from external customers RESNREPZBA - 2,134 8492 690 11,316 1,080 12,39
Reportable segment revenue THRED B - 2134 8,492 690 11,316 1,080 12,39
Reportable segment (loss)/profit THES BREA (FR) /%R
before taxation (9,921) (16,194) 7,258 (57) (18,914) 2 (18912)
Interest income FIEMA 9 - 9 - 18 - 18
Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment (9,700) - - - (9,700) = (9,700)
Impairment loss on other receivables - (15,871) - - (15,871) - (15,871)
Depreciation § - (259) - - (259) (168) (421)
Interest expense FER% 1) - - (533) (564) (25) (689)
Reportable segment assets TRESPEE 87,138 3,076 103,898 24,867 218,079 3,607 200676
Additions to non-current FRBIBEERE
segment assets - - - 37 37 1 48
Reportable segment liabilities TEEIHEE (32,133) (6,927) (83) (23,674) (62,787) (1,956) (64,743)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z=-T—"F=A=+—HBIFE
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. DEW/E (&)
(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) () PHEE EERAE (B
An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment is reported below: REBEFTEMAIRED 2 AT
(Continued) T (#8)
2015
“2-nf
Discontinuing
Continuing Operations Operati
FEREEH Bk LS
Manufacturing Travel and
Sustainable and sale travel
forest of timber Money Leasing of related
management products lending properties Sub-total business Total
THE BER TR Rl
HHER HEAMER K& NERE et REEH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETL BB AT BETL BB AT BRI
Revenue from external customers RESNREPZBA - 3,053 2,898 645 6,59 1226 7,822
Reportable segment revenue AREDBE - 3,053 2,898 645 6,596 1,226 7822
Reportable segment (loss)/profit THES BREA (FR) /%R
before taxation (12,709) (1,07M) 1,991 940 (10,849 9 (10,840)
Interest income LUELON 2 - - - 2 - 2
Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment 1% * % iR 2 Al AR > 5 & > 5 = =
Change in fair value of biological
assets less costs to sell (16,197) - - - (16,197) - (16,197)
Depreciation i ) 76) . (13 (310) (192) (502)
Reversal of write down of inventories, net AOFENAEE - 58 - - 58 - 58
Interest expense MEHR (642) - - (598) (1,240) (@5 (1,265)
Reportable segment assets THRESPEE 107,835 25,331 96,783 24,905 254,854 3373 258,227
Additions to non-current segment assets FRBESPERRE - - 9% - % 4 %8
Reportable segment liabilities TREDBEE (35,799) (11,688) (106) (23,654) (71.241) (2,009) (73.250)
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T e BTSRRI R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z_—%

—NGES A = p B AR

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. DEWE (&)
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit (b) "HRED "‘B WA-8R BER
or loss, assets and liabilities: BEZHER:
(i) Revenue ) HA
2016 2015
—E-XF —akE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Reportable segment revenue Al D & A
(continuing operations) (BFEREER) 11,316 6,596
Elimination of inter-segment HiEH: *B A
revenue - =
Consolidated revenue (continuing 424 U A
operations) (FHBREER) 11,316 6,596
(i) Loss (i) £’
2016 2015
—E-XRF S R&E
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Reportable segment loss before  AJ 3R &5 2B FE AT ES 18
taxation (continuing operations) (EEREET) (18,914) (10,849)
Unallocated corporate income ROEEERA 185 364
Change in fair value of financial MBaEs AT EE
liabilities (11,587) (38,612)
Depreciation e - @)
Unallocated corporate expenses K7 Bl (B %557 (8,300) (7,191)
Unallocated interest expense ROBEF SR - (64)
Loss before taxation (continuing  BRFLAIETIE (FEAE )
operations) (38,616) (56,354)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z_—-=

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit
or loss, assets and liabilities: (Continued)

o = HEEE

6. TEBEE (40)

(b) —Jiﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂl&)&‘iﬁi‘é‘ﬁéﬁ
BEZHER: (B

(iij) Assets (i) ZE
2016 2015
—E—RF — e
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Segment assets for reportable REAFEEEFEB 2
segments from continuing ARG D EEE
operations 218,979 254,854
Segment assets for reportable REBRIEEEE S
segment from discontinuing AImEDEEE
operations 3,697 8878
Reportable segment assets ARG D HEE 222,676 258,227
Unallocated: KRB :
— Unallocated cash and cash — KPR RESEEY
equivalents 37,542 46,254
— Other unallocated corporate —HEtRDEEEEE
assets 861 175
Total assets per consolidated RE BB
statement of 2B EBE
financial position 261,079 305,656
(iv) Liabilities (ivy &
2016 2015
—AE — a4z
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Segment liabilities for reportable K BIFEF L EE 2
segments from continuing ARESEEE
operations 62,787 71,241
Segment liabilities for reportable R H B AR IEE & ET 2
segment from discontinuing AmESHaE
operations 1,956 2,009
Reportable segment liabilities AmEDEHEE 64,743 73,250
Unallocated: KRB :
- Financial liabilities —MBaRE 52,029 40,595
— Provision for taxation — IR - 2,220
— Deferred tax liabilities —REFIBEE 29,025 38,632
— Other unallocated corporate —EMARSECEAE
liabilities 3,451 1,400
Total liabilities per consolidated e MK RT 25
statement of financial position BERRE 149,248 156,097

Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2015/2016
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit
or loss, assets and liabilities: (Continued)

AN
Aref

BT —

6. ZEHE (@)
(b) AHEDBBRA EE BEER
BEZHE: (&)

A5 R MY e

NE=ZR=1T—HIHFE

(v) Other items v) EftEH
2016
—8-RE

Discontinuing

Continuing Operations Operations

b BB BRIEEEE

Manufacturing

Sustainable and sale of Travel and

forest timber Leasing of travel related
management products Money lending properties Unallocated Sub-total business Total

TRE RER MR R AR
ANEE HEAMER R NERT IR it RS by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT RETT BETT BETT RETT BETT BETT
Depreciation bk | - (253) - - - (253) (168) (421)
Interest expense FEET 1) - - (533) = (564) (25) (589)

2015
—%-nf

Discontinuing

Continuing Operations Operations

HELELH GEJRLES

Manufacturing

Sustainable and sale of Travel and

forest timber Leasing of travel related
management products Money lending properties Unallocated Sub-total business Total

Bt 2R I RdRE
HER HEAMER & nERS AAR I3t REXHE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR BETT BB AR BETL BB BB BB
Depreciation & @1 (276) - (13) @ (312) (192) (504)
Interest expense MERx (642) - - (598) (64) (1,304) (25) (1,329)
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IN=UE e e

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ=—T— X F=A=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
(c) Revenue from major products and services:

6. DEHE (@)

() REFEEMERBEHZWA:

Continuing Discontinuing
Operations Operations Consolidated
FEREXK BRIEREEK RE
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
S$-AF C-T-EF  C®-AF  -T-BF  C®-AF  -T-0F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BETT

BT BT BET T BETT

Manufacturing and sales HEREEAMER

of timber products 2,134 3,053 - - 2,134 3,053
Interest income from money ~ FUEZER 2 A S YA
lending business 8,492 2,898 - - 8,492 2,898
Travel and travel related Tt e JR AR A 2 7
business - - 1,080 1,226 1,080 1,226
Leasing of properties MERE 690 645 - - 690 645
11,316 6,596 1,080 1,226 12,396 7,822

Geographical information

The following is an analysis of geographical location of (i) the Group’s
revenue from external customers and (i) the Group’s property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets, and investment properties. The
geographical locations of customers refers to the locations at which
the customers reside. The geographical locations of property, plant
and equipment, and investment properties is based on the physical
locations of the asset under consideration. In the case of intangible
assets, the allocation is based on the location of the operation to
which they are allocated.

AT ROAEBREINATL ZWA K
(VAEBYE  BFELRE BVEER
BREWMERZWES T -BPHRIERP
FTEZ Ml » )5 ~ S AR A IR &
MERZIMERBRERZBEAGEE
W B EER BB -

Revenue from external customers Non-current assets
RENMRBFZBA FRBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—B-RE “E-nf —E-RE “I-nf
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT BT T BB
Continuing operations FEREEY
South America FEM - - 85,508 106,108
Asia Pacific (other than Hong Kong) &A@ (T EEEE) 2,134 3,053 1,042 1,357
Hong Kong (place of domicile) B () 9,182 3,543 24,824 25,309
11,316 6,596 111,374 132,774
Discontinuing operations DRIEEEETR
Hong Kong (place of domicile) H (BEHE) 1,080 1,226 2,934 2,667
12,396 7,822 114,308 135,441
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Information about major customer

For the year ended 31 March 2016

6.

Revenue from customer contributing 10% or more of the total revenue

of the Group is as follows:

sre ISR R M
HE-T AT=A=t BL&E

D EBERE (&)
ERFERF2ER
REEAREEERAI0% A FZ2 B
ZUALTR

Continuing operations

Customer A - revenue from money lending
Customer B - revenue from manufacturing

and sales of timber

Customer C - revenue from manufacturing

and sales of timber

Customer D - revenue from money lending
Customer E - revenue from money lending

REVENUE

BEPA-XKEMEZHBA

EFB-—REREMHEAN

WA
EFC—RBRERHEARM

i WA
BEFD—RAMEBEZBA
BEFPE-REREZRA

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, (after
allowances for returns and trade discounts) and revenue from
manufacturing and sales of timber products; lease of premises to
generate rental income; and interest income from financial assets.

2016 2015
—E—REF s
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
4,778 1,553

= 933

2,114 =
1,667 =
1,447 =

A

WAREIMBRRE R EENFHER L
B BERFENRBERIHEANT
B BEMENETHESWA : AN
BEEZHNBWAZIWA -

An analysis of revenue is as follows: WADITET :
2016 2015
—E-XRE —ET—hfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT

Continuing operations BEREEL

Manufacturing and sales of timber products £33 & $4& AR H1 2& & 2,134 3,053
Interest income from money lending business & 7 ¥ 75 2 Fl| 8 U A 8,492 2,898
Leasing of properties YERE 690 645
11,316 6,596
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ=—T— X F=A=+—HIEFE

8. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER NET LOSS

8. HttWARHMERFHE

2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BEE I
Continuing operations BHEKSEER
Other income Hib g A
Waiver of loan interest BB A B - 4,046
Net gain on disposal of a wholly-owned HE—EE2ENBARZ
subsidiary ek B8 - 4,234
Reversal of write down of inventories, net BBl 17 &MU F 38 - 58
Others HAh 79 92
79 8,430
Other net loss H 518 =58
Net exchange loss b 3 518 F 58 (1) (110)
Change in fair value of financial liabilities MBEREATEEZY (11,587) (38,612)
(11,598) (38,722)
9. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS 9. EERE
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT IT
Continuing operations BEREEL
Impairment of property, plant and equipment #)3 ~ = K& & 2 @ E
(Note 18) (K77£18) 9,700 =
Impairment on other receivables (Note j) B WK IE R B (A7 2Ei) 15,871 -
25,571 -
Notes: Kt -
0) Impairment on other receivables for the year ended 31 March 2016 represented the @ HE-_ZT—"F=A=1+—HILLFEHME

unsecured amounts due from independent third parties, which were past due and
had been long outstanding. Based on the latest available information available to
management, the independent third party debtors had financial difficulties for the
year ended 31 March 2016. Accordingly, impairment were recognised during the
year.

Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2015/2016
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HZE—ZT—A~"F=A=1+—HIEFE

10. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 10. BREIATES 18
The Group’s loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/ ANEERRF BB B OAETBR (GEA) T
(crediting): P BIEBED
2016 2015
—E—RE == aaks
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Ha BT T BT
Continuing operations: RER ST
(a) Net finance costs (a) MEEBRFHEE
Interest income from bank deposits RITF I FBHBA (203) (366)
Total interest income on financial W IEIE A FEFTA
assets not at fair value through BaRWBEEE
profit or loss ZF B A LBEE (203) (366)
Finance costs mE B A
Interest on loans and other ERREMEEZ
borrowings B 564 1,240
Interest on promissory notes AENERZFE - 64
Total interest expenses on financial W IR A FEFA
liabilities not at fair value through B umRErWBas
profit or loss Z A ERZ e 564 1,304
361 938
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ=—T— A "F=A=1+—HIEFE

10. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 10. BRFLATES 1B (&)
2016 2015
ZE-RF —ZE—hfF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
et BT T BT
(b) Staff costs (including (b) ET KA
directors’ remuneration) (BIEEEM2)
Salaries, wages and He IER
other benefits HAthta 5 5,385 4,823
Contributions to defined contribution B FE K
retirement plans FTEIftR 237 212
5,622 5,035
(c) Other items (c) Hf1EH
Cost of inventories FEKAR 24 1,820 2,860
Depreciation e 18 253 312
Minimum lease payments under T REF (B
operating leases for land and EEEE)
buildings (including directors’ KEHD 2
quarters) RIERBSHR 543 592
Auditor’s remuneration Z RN B &
— audit services — B ZAR 910 1,143
— other services — E M AR 7S 50 462
960 1,605
Gross rental income from BEYEHRS A
investment properties less direct BEEREE S T
outgoings of approximately #4975 #105,7007C
HK$105,700 (2015: HK$111,000) —E—RF:
75 #111,000 7T.) 585 534
11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 11. ERIEREEK
Disposal of travel agent business HERTREER
On 23 March 2016, the Group entered into the disposal Agreement R-E—ARF=ZA-_+=H AEEH
with the independent third party, pursuant to which, the Group had BN E=FRIN HERE Bt AEE
conditionally agreed to sell and the independent third party had EERHREEEMBLE=TEBK
conditionally agreed to purchase the Group’s 95% of the issued share HREZEEEASERNIREEERAAE
capital of Travel Inn Limited for the consideration of HK$1,800,000. BT 295% R {B &5 11,800,000
The disposal was completed on 28 April 2016 when control of the TLoHEFERZZE—A"EFNA=ZF+N
subsidiary was passed to the acquirer. Details of the assets and H (MBAR 2 IEHIER KRB TER)
liabilities disposed of, and the result on disposal, are disclosed in note TR BEEHEEERAE UREE
12 and note 44(a) respectively. HER 2 EEED BB B M 125 Mt 5
44(a) °
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)

Analysis of profit for the year from discontinued operation

The results of the discontinued operation included in the profit for
the year are set out below. The comparative profit and cash flows
from the discontinued operation have been re-presented to include
the operation classified as discontinued in the current year. The
comparative consolidated statement of profit or loss has been restated
to show the discontinued operation separately from continuing

fre MBS HRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HZE—ZT—A~"F=A=1+—HIEFE

11. EARLEREE® (8

ﬁﬁﬁ%i%@%%ﬁZﬁEiﬁﬂﬁ
ATHEINFAFREGN DR IEREE
BEB -REERIE2XBZARLL
BRMMBEERECEY ABREAF
EOERERIEREZ XK -AJELR
ReBaRoEI UoRBRERLE

operations.
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—hfF
$’000 $’000
PO S
Profit for the year from discontinued REERIEREE 2
operation FEmF
Revenue WA 1,080 1,226
Cost of sales SHE A - =
Gross profit EF 1,080 1,226
Distribution costs 7 SER AN - -
Administrative expenses TBE (1,053) (1,192)
Finance costs BEE M (25) (25)
Profit before taxation BR 758 A1 V2 71 2 9
Attributable income tax expense B HREAY - (106)
Profit/(loss) for the year from REBRIMEEES 2
discontinued operation FERA/ (EE) 2 97)
Profit/(loss) for the year from JEMRBERIEEEES 2
discontinued operation attributable to: FEwM(EE) -
Owners of the company ZN/NECIEZZEWN 2 @7)
Non-controlling interests e - -
Profit/(loss) for the year from REERIEEEEE 2
discontinued operation FEmH, (BE) 2 97)
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 11.

Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2015/2016
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ=—T— A "F=A=1+—HIEFE

Analysis of profit for the year from discontinued operation

ERIEEESRE (1)
REERIEEERE 2 FEEND

(Continued) (%)
2016 2015
—E-RF —F—hfF
$'000 $'000
Fr St
Loss for the year from discontinued operation 2R E B4 IHE & %75 2 F 2
include the following: EEBETYEE:
Depreciation and amortisation e R S 168 192
Auditor’s remuneration Z S B B & - -
Cash flows from discontinued operation REBRIEREER 2
R meE
Net cash inflows from operating activities BT A FEE 101 181
Net cash inflows from investing activities WEEBRES TN FE (12) @)
Net cash outflows from financing activites R & & B3R &7 HF 58 (83) 82
Net cash inflows HEeMmAFRE 6 95
Earnings per share BARZAF
Basic, from discontinued operation RE BRI E R 2 BR
(HK cents per share) (FRB) - =

Diluted, from discontinued operation
(HK cents per share)

KEBRIERERY 2 #58
(BB

Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share for the
discontinued operation are based on the profit attributable to owners
of the Company from the discontinued operation of $2,000 (2015: loss
of $97,000) and the denominators detailed in note 17 for both basic

and diluted earnings per share.

BRILEEERBRERET KSR
SERAMIBEARNT A AELD & IE
R E L 7 552,000 (ZE—R4F:
[E51897,0007T ) & M sE175Fadl AR FH &
EREARLEERN 2 HFTE -
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fre SRR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HZE—T—A~"F=A=1+—HIEFE

12. DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE

In March 2016, the Group’s management committed to a plan to sell
its subsidiary — Travel Inn Limited — Travel Agent segment. Accordingly,
this part is presented as a disposal group held for sale. Efforts to sell
the disposal group have commenced since March 2016 and the sale
has been subsequently completed on 28 April 2016.

At 31 March 2016, the disposal group comprised the following assets

12. BEFEZHEARR

RZE—ARF=ZA AEEEEREHNTT
E H B A Al-iR A R A Al-HRkTT
REDPZETE Bt lEH 255
?ﬂ’Eﬁ’%ZHﬂ%%ﬂ%U"ﬁ%%ﬁ%‘J‘ZHﬂ%
If”EEQ T RNFE=-ARRAK B

BERER-_ZE—NFONA-+N\HB=
ﬁio

R-ZZE—ARE=A=+—"H8 HEA5

and liabilities. BEATEEREBE-
2016
—NE
$'000
e
Property, plant and equipment M BB &R 2,934
Trade and other receivables FEU B 5 SR8 K H Ath FE UL 5RIE 92
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEFEY 660
Deferred tax assets BT EE 11
Assets of disposal group held for sale BESECHEARZEE 3,697
Amount due to non-controlling shareholder JE 15T FE 22 AR AR SR KT8 834
Trade and other payables JERTE SIERE ﬁﬂl,f\ ERTRIR 263
Loans and borrowings BERKkEE 785
Deferred tax liabilities BIEMIARE 74
Liabilities of disposal group held for sale BE#EZHEARZAE 1,956

Cumulative income or expenses included in other
comprehensive income

There are no cumulative income or expenses included in other
comprehensive income relating to the disposal group.

The assets and liabilities of the disposal group at the completion date
on 28 April 2016 were not materially different from the above values at
31 March 2016.

%;AEM%EH&AZ%%H&AEZE@

MEABLEAR 2T ARMEESEA
Z BFHRARRX -

HEHABRTEKBEH(ZE—RFENA
_+J\E)Z§F&ET§§515(\ T—X
F=A=t+—HZEAETEEARE
Ho
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SR BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ=—T— A "F=A=1+—HIEFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS

13. EERESTRAEBZHME

RIFBRA R REDIEI83(N)ER AT (B

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation and

REERMER KR ) R F280F

B EEMERERITRABZMEM

the chief executive’s emoluments are as follows: ™
2016
“E-RE
Salaries Retirement
and other scheme  Share-based
Fees benefits  contributions payment Total
HER RIK
ik Hitn @A SEMR URGXA Bzt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BET T BT
Executive Directors HTES
YEUNG Sau Chung (Appointed 5 &F (R=Z—H%F
on 5 June 2015) NALBEZE) 890 - 36 - 926
Liu Shun Chuen (Appointed B2 (R-2—1F
on 5 June 2015) NALBEZE) 517 - 21 - 538
MUNG Wai Ming EXELT 120 - - - 120
ZHOU Jing (Resigned on A (R=F—1%F
17 November 2015) T—RATtB#E) 86 - 6 - 92
1,613 - 63 - 1,676
Independent Non-Executive ~ B FH{TES
Directors
William Keith JACOBSEN REH 120 - - - 120
WU Wang Li R 120 - - - 120
NG Wai Hung REE 240 - - - 240
480 - - - 430
2,093 - 63 - 2,156
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

AR M R A
BE-F AE=A=-ALFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 13. EERESITRAEBZHE (&)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
2015
—ZE-0F
Salaries Retirement
and other scheme  Share-based
Fees benefits  contributions payment Total
Fek R
e Hhigrl AEME UROXA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BT BT
Executive Directors HTES
ZHOU Jing A& 120 - 12 - 132
MUNG Wai Ming ENEL 220 - 10 - 230
340 - 22 - 362
Independent Non-Executive ~ BV EHTES
Directors
William Keith JACOBSEN EEH 120 - - - 120
WU Wang Li Rl 120 - - - 120
NG Wai Hung RIENR 240 - - - 240
480 - - - 480
820 - 22 - 842

On 6 April 2011, Mr. LEUNG Chau Ping, Paul was re-designated
from the position as an executive director of the Company to a non-
executive director and resigned as chief executive. Since then and
up to the date of approval of financial statements, the position of
chief executive has not been appointed. During the current financial
year when no chief executive was appointed, the functions of chief
executive have been performed by the executive directors with the
assistance of the management of the Company

Therefore, the executive directors together act as the chief executive
of the Company and are responsible for the Company’s day to day
management and overall activities. The remuneration of executive
directors for 2015 and 2016 are disclosed above.

There was no arrangement under which a director has waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2015 and 2016, no emolument was
paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

R_E——FHANE  RKTEER
ARBRTESRHERFERTES I
BHETTERARERTS - B L 2 HEI 5
RAH - THAAR—BRARE - RAR
BF R AT AR B B 2 HE - 1T B
BZBBERARPERE 2B T B
TEFET

Bt  MITEZRKEEAR R RS
BAB BEARAIATEERER
B-HTESR_TE—RAFR=ZT—X
FZHMN EXHE -

BEEENEXRAEREEAHE 2L
HEe

BE-_T - IRERZFT )54
=t HEFERN AEETERES
SN E  AERBFMAIRINAR
SEE 2 SRR BRI (E -
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SR BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ=—T— X F=A=1+—HIEFE

14. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 14.

The five highest paid individuals during the year included two (2015:
one) directors, details of whose emoluments are set out in Note 13
above. The aggregate of the emoluments of the remaining three (2015:
four) non-directors and non-chief executive, highest paid individuals

REHAL

FRALEESHFALTEBERE (ZF
—EFE-R)EFT - FHREZHE
HBEHN EXMFIB-BRT=2(=F
—hF: HR)REHIFEERIFTHE

were as follows: HALTZMESBEENT
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—h%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Salaries and other emoluments S REMME 1,962 2,015
Retirement scheme contributions RREEEI TR 88 65
Share-based payment VARZ 17 52 £+ - =
2,050 2,080

The emoluments of the non-director and non-chief executive, highest
paid individuals fell within the following bands:

ReFHFEERIFTHRERA LT ZHE
MFATEE :

Number of individuals

EE#E
2016 2015
—E—REF =S —akE
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 7B 7p & 75 #1,000,0007T 2 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 751,000,001 T &
75 #1,500,0007T 1 =
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 751,500,001 7T &
752 000,0007T - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 7512 000,001 7T E
78 %2 500,000 7T - -
3 4

During the years ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015, no
emolument was paid by the Group to such individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

15. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (RELATING TO
CONTINUING OPERATIONS)

(a)

sre ISR M
HE-T AT=A=t BLFE

15%6&%&%%@%%@%%

Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or (a) GEBEERZFAEHARK:
loss represents:
2016 2015
—E-XREF —T—hfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Current tax BN HA% 18
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BEFEH
— Current year —RFE - 53
Current tax BpEAB 18
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HREPEMEH
— Current year —AFE - =
Deferred tax EAET IE
— Origination and reversal of —EERELOERERE
temporary differences (5,545) =
Tax charge/(credit) FRIBUWE, (%) (5,545) 53

i) Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% of the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong for the year ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.

i)  Brazil income tax rate is 34% (2015: 34%) of the estimated
assessable profits arising in Brazil. No Brazil income tax has
been provided for in the financial statements as the Brazil’s
subsidiary has no assessable profit for both years.

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax at
25% (2015: 25%).

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

RE-T AFR_F-17
=H=1—RAILEE BEF
BRI EBEL 2 (5
S5t 5t 16,59 5 R
R

ErAMEHRBEREAELEZ
{ETFERR R m A 2 B 2K A234%

== R gA 0o F N
Fafi B A Al A B 1 e
R A - B LB R TS
TR B SRR AT IR 4 ©

R B A BRI B AT
BHREBUHH (T —FHF:
25% ) ©

READ BLAE R E A 2 DR IZ IR
BEER ZERBERGE -

KRMEZERERAT « Z2—FHF —T—AFFER
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o

SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z_—-=—

15. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (RELATING TO
CONTINUING OPERATIONS) (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

(c)

B = H TS

15. FiEHimx (AR E

(%)

A E 30 Y

(b) EABABRAE ZREAMRX

loss at applicable tax rates: HEHHBEEZHE:
2016 2015
—E-RE = fEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Loss before taxation BrF AT 1B (38,616) (56,354)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, EERABRRERREEZ
calculated at the rates applicable to BEFE ZBREAISEZ
loss in the countries concerned HERMIE (11,664) (13,044)
Tax effect of non-taxable income LERBRIMA Z B & (205) (1,250)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A IS 2 g & 12,106 13,815
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERREBATIBEE 2
recognised MIEE 65 532
Tax effect arising from reversal of BRECERERERELY
temporary differences recognised ihyia -7 (5,545) -
Tax effect of temporary differences not & ARER 2 B R EZREM IS E
recognised (100) =
Utilisation of previously unrecognised  Eh B RFEARTIEE B
tax losses (202) -
Tax (credit)/charge BiIE () AR (5,545) 53

Tax effect relating to each component of other

comprehensive loss

(c)

%ﬂﬂéﬁ&s?ﬁ%%ﬂﬁkﬁﬁ 7 2B

2016 2015
ZE-RE —T-Rf%
Tax Tax
Beforetax  (expenses)/ Net-of-tax Before tax (expenses)/ Net-of-tax
amount benefit amount amount benefit amount
A WR
(BX)/ NBRHE# (A%)/  M&HKER
REAIEE BE JE  RUAEE BE ¢
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT BT T BETT BB BT
Exchange differences on REEINTE A
translation of financial Eﬁ%i&ﬁ?ﬁ@éi
statements of overseas EXER
subsidiaries (5,026) - (5,026) (15,921) - (15,921)
(5,026) - (5,026) (15,921) - (15,921)
16. R 2

16. DIVIDENDS

The directors of the Company do not propose the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$NIl).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

17. LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

For continuing and discontinuing operations

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to the owners of the Company as follows
and the reconciliation of the weighted average number of shares
as shown in Note (d):

fre MBS HRR MR

BE_T—AE=-A=+—HAIFE
17. BREE
(@) HERCARLEEXER

BREANESEBIIRBA T A
RAEVER ARIGE R KM TR
Z B ke I B RRET &

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Loss [Fi=]
Loss for the purpose of basic RAUGTEESREARK
and diluted loss per share B EEBE L SE (33,077) (56,508)

Diluted loss per share equals to the basic loss per share for the
years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015 because the outstanding
convertible preferred shares, share options, warrants and other
potential ordinary shares in issue had an anti-dilutive effect on the
basic loss per share.

For continuing operations

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing operations is based on the loss attributable to the
owners of the Company as follow and the reconciliation of the
weighted average number of shares as shown in Note (d):

(b)

B R R TT R 2 AT IR AR S P B
PRAE - R R A R H B T8
EEBERkzSREAEBRARE
BYE BHE_T-RFR-T
—hF=A=+—HIEFEZERKR
BEEBRASNERELEE-

FEQEXER

FEREEB 2 BRERNLEEE
BIMRBIA T ARRIER ARIGE
18 N P RE (D) P 2 B A g S 29 K

IR

2016 2015
ZE-RF —T—hE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Loss 58
Loss for the purpose of basic and AU ESRER KR
diluted loss per share BEBECBE (33,079) (56,411)

Diluted loss per share equals to the basic loss per share for
the years 31 March 2016 and 2015 because the outstanding
convertible preferred shares, share options, warrants and other
potential ordinary shares in issue had an anti-dilutive effect on the
basic loss per share.

R R ARITEE 2 AT E S i - BB
PRt - RARIE R LA R H B 1T E
EERRSRERNBEARS
BYE BHBE_T-RFR-ZT
—hFE=A=t—HUFEZE8K
BEERESNERELER-

KRMEZERERAT « 22— HF —T—AFFER
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SR BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ=—T— A "F=A=1+—HIEFE

17. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)
(c) For discontinuing operations

Basic earning/(loss) per share

Basic earning per share for the discontinuing operations is
HK$0.00002 cent (2015: loss per share of HK$0.001 cent)
per share which is based on the profit from the discontinuing
operations of HK$2,000 (2015: loss of HK$97,000) and the
denominators used as shown in Note (d).

Diluted earning/(loss) per share equals to the basic loss per share
for the years 31 March 2016 and 2015 because the outstanding
convertible preferred shares, share options, warrants and other
potential ordinary shares in issue had an anti-dilutive effect on the
basic loss per share.

(d) Weighted average number of shares

17. SREE (B)
(c) BRIEEEEK

EREXEF - (EE)

BRI EEL 2 BREREF A
B #0.00002( (—ZT—RF:
IR EE A 0.001L) - TIIRER
AR E AR ZE RS 2 i F S 52,000T
(ZZ— AR 4 : B85 %97,0007T)
() RNz iR S A

P 0 SR 77 05 2 AT BR 1B e R - BB
RO SRR 5 1A % L fth B BT
EEBR Y BREAFEARE
WYL REBE-_E-AER-F
—HE=A=t-BILEEIEK
%?@ﬂ/%%ﬁ)@%%ﬁ%%$
iE -

(d) B nfEFIIE

2016 2015
ZE-RF —E—hF
’000 ’000
T 3
Number of Shares RO E
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ AR E SRR EAR K # 5 E1E
shares for the purpose of basic 2 AR Nt 15 £
and diluted loss per share 8,909,619 7,595,743
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T e BTSRRI R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #H#ZE_Z— R F=A=+—HILFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥ -HWERRZE
Machinery,
Furniture  engineering
Freehold and and other Motor
Land Property fixtures equipment vehicles Total
KA BE IBR
EELti ¥  HGRREE Hitik e RE @t
(Note a)
(Hiita)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

[ BT BT EBTL BETT BT BT

Cost BA

At1 April 2014 RZFT—MmF

mA—H 163,728 3,220 4,674 4,138 1,740 177,500
Additions NE - - 4 - - 4
Disposals of subsidiaries HEMBAR - - @2 (299) - (331)
Exchange movement B3 2 (49,995) - 32 12 - (49,951)
At 31 March 2015 RZE—1%F

==& 113,733 3,220 4,678 3,851 1,740 127,222
At1 April 2015 R-E—T%F

mA—H 333 3,220 4,678 3,851 1,740 127,222
Additions NE - - 48 - - 48
Reclassified as held for sale ~ EH DA 12

e = (3.220) (186) = 4 (3.406)
Exchange movement k) (11,904) - @17) (83) - (12,204)
At 31 March 2016 RZE—~%F

=H=—1E 101,829 - 4,323 3,768 1,740 111,660

ARMEEZRERDA e —T—HF “T—RFFR 99
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=R R e

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z=-T—"F=A=+—HBIFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 18. W% -BERRME (&)
Machinery,
Furniture  engineering
Freehold and and other Motor
Land Property fixtures equipment vehicles Total
XX KR IRR
2 R ¥  BRREE Hitnik RE @it
(Note a)
(Hista)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B zE BETT BETT BETT BT BETT BETT
Accumulated depreciation R HERFERFE
and impairment losses
At 1 April 2014 R-Z—meE
mA—H 11,009 2 4179 2,801 1,740 19,731
Charge for the year AEEAR - 168 176 160 - 504
Written back on disposals of & B 2 5]
subsidiaries & - - 12) 219 - (231)
Exchange movement ERg (3,384) - 30 3 - (3,351)
At 31 March 2015 R-Z2-5%
ZA=+-8 7,625 170 4373 2,745 1,740 16,653
At 1 April 2015 R-B-R%E
mA—H 7,625 170 4373 2,745 1,740 16,653
Charge for the year KEEMG - 168 135 118 - 421
Impairment R{E 9,700 - - - = 9,700
Reclassified as held for sale ~ E# 918 A 1E 12
e - (339) (134) - e (472)
Exchange movement [ & (1,004) - (199) 17 - (1,220)
At 31 March 2016 R-B—A%
ER=ET—E 16,321 - 4,175 2,846 1,740 25,082
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 March 2016 RZE—RE
=ER=ET—E 85,508 - 148 922 - 86,578
At 31 March 2015 R-Z-5%
ERET—E 106,108 3,050 305 1,106 - 110,569
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sre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HZE—ZT—A~"F=A=1+—HIEFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes:

@)

The freehold land is held in Amazon Region, Brazil where the 44,500-hectare natural
forest is located (Note 21). As mentioned in Note 40, UTRB had litigations with
third parties, and they filed a precautionary injunction to prevent UTRB of selling its
freehold land without properly paying possible claim to them.

At 31 March 2016, the Group’s property in Hong Kong with the carrying amount
of approximately HK$2,882,000 (2015: HK$3,050,000) were pledged to secure the
bank loans granted to the Group (Note 29). The property was reclassified as held
for sale as at 31 March 2016, details of which are set out in notes 11 and 12. At 31
March 2016, the property reclassified as held for sale had an estimated recoverable
value over the carrying amount and no impairment was considered necessary.

Since 31 March 2014, the harvesting operation in Brazil Forest (Note 21) has
been suspended. As the business environment continued to be difficult for the
Group in Brazil. At 31 March 2016, the board of directors impaired the freehold
land in Brazil's subsidiary with an amount of HK$9,700,000 in sustainable forest
management segment which was charged to the profit or loss for the year ended
31 March 2016 by writing down the carrying amount to the estimated recoverable
amount of the freehold land of HK$85,956,000 at 31 March 2016. The estimate
of recoverable amount was based on the freehold land fair values less costs of
disposal, using direct comparison method under market approach, performed by
the professional valuer, Greater China Appraisal Limited (“GCA”) who has amongst
its staff felow members of chartered surveyors with qualifications and experiences
in valuing similar assets. The fair value on which the recoverable amount based on is
categorized as a level 3 fair value measurement.

The estimation uncertainties in determining the fair value of freehold land of the
Group are disclosed in note 5(b).

At 31 March 2015, the recoverable amount of the freehold land had been
reassessed based on the estimated fair value less costs of disposal, using the direct
comparison method under market approach, by the professional valuer, GCA who
has amongst its staff fellow members of chartered surveyors with qualifications and
experiences in valuing similar assets. Based on the assessment, the directors of the
Company considered that no impairment was required as at 31 March 2015.

The analysis of carrying amounts of property is as follows:

18. W% -HWERRE (8)

Kt -

(@)  SKAZAEL A BT T 5 R 844,500
AER R (FTFE21) BT o 35 20 Bt 5540
Frift - UTRBER E = 5 B F 78 ¥ 5 B B
FEBMEEE1ES - ARG UTRBTE R EE & S /]
BE 2 RIERTH S E K A ST i o

b) R-ZB—RE=ZA=1+—0 AEEMZRES
ZEREEX5152,882,0007T (—ZE—A%F i
#3,050,0007T ) Z MEE(E AN EBERRT
ERZ MR (H15529) « ZMER —F —R%F
= BARRBERES  ARFE
BRI - R B —AE=A=1+—
B EM5 B AREFE 2 WEMAF AT KEE
BREREE AR AETELRE

© BZZE-—NME=F=+—8i BFEZHK(H
H2N) MK EBEEE B ‘$§EEE
PEERMHRECERE R —~F=
A=+—H B¢ TEEWE BEESE
FRRE IR D 50 2 5K A FEHE £t VE R B S B
9,700,0007T * B B8R (B 35 B MUR AR E B 2 5K
AERIHR-_ZT—A"F=A=+—RHZH
&1 AT U Bl € 58785 %585,956,000T ' REIZE=F
—ANEZA=+—BLEEEZBEANG-
AllkEl S B REEGHEMEZETEERA
Al (DEZETED) ERATISEAE N2 HEELER
SERB K A ERE L b 2 D FAE R &SRR AN
R EEFEREATERGERUEAERAS
B2 AR - ALK E S BATRIEZ A
FERESEAE=BAFEFTZE-

EEALE 2 KAER LM 2 ATFEZ b
A BA B SR A P 55 (0) 5 B8

“E-RF=RA=+—H KAEELH A
W B e M E XA EMEEFERE AR
R EFEERAERTSER T ZERL
BORBHGE EETEREF A TARMGER
MﬁFH¢EW$ZH*“ B - RRIBAH(E

ﬁ*ﬁﬂﬁ@

@ DEZREEINOT:

2016 2015
—EB-XEF —E—AfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
In Hong Kong: B
— medium-term leases — FHEEE - 3,050

KEHEZERERAT e —F—AF —F—REFER
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e

19.

B HRR M T

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE_Z - F=HA=+—HBILFE
INTANGIBLE ASSETS BEEE
Money
Sales Lending
Patent contracts Trademark Licence Total
iy HERN BE BEARR @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT BT BETT
Cost BA
At 1 April 2014 RZZ—-NERA—H 4,419 17,251 25,924 - 47,594
Acquisition of subsidiary e hl=YNG
(note 36(3)) (H17136()) - - - % 9%
At 31 March 2015 and RZZ—0%
31 March 2016 =EI=ST—ER
=R == ar—E 4,419 17,251 25,924 94 47,688
Accumulated amortisationand R #HE K BEFE
impairment losses 4,419 17,251 25,924 94 47,688
At 1 April 2014, RZZE-ME/RA—H-
31 March 2015 and “E-RE=A=1—-HK
31 March 2016 —E-A"¥=ZA=1+—-H 4,419 17,251 25,924 - 47,594
Carrying amount REE
At 31 March 2016 RZE—R"E=A=1+—H - - - 94 94
At 31 March 2015 “T-h¥=A=1+—H - - - 94 94

The Group acquired the patent for the “curved floor panels”,
outstanding sales contracts and the registered trademark “F74%/N”
through the acquisition of Originate Tech Global Investments Limited
and its subsidiaries on 2 August 2011. These intangible assets were
valued by an independent valuer as at the date of acquisition at HK$48
million.

In previous years, the results of manufacturing and sale of timber
products incurred loss. The net loss was primarily attributable to the
rapid slow down of the property market and falling property prices
in the PRC. As a result of the uncertainties in the PRC economy and
continued depressed timber demand and prices, the Group impaired
the value of the intangible assets related to manufacturing and sale of
timber products.

The Group acquired the money-lending licence through the acquisition
of Asset Bridge Development Limited.

As there is no change for the recoverable amount of the intangible
assets, no reversal of impairment is provided for the years ended 31
March 2016 and 2015.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HZE—ZT—A~"F=A=1+—HIEFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
The Group’s property interests held to earn rentals are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

20. REYE

AEEREYMEZ R IARDNES AR
BERAFEELAE YHBRAK
RIEME-

2016 2015
—E—XRF —E—AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEEFIT

At fair value b2/ -]
At 1 April R A—H 24,778 23,699
Changes in fair value NEEEE (76) 1,079
At 31 March REB=1=E 24,702 24,778

All of the Group’s investment properties are situated in Hong Kong and
are held under medium-term leases.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further details of which are included in Note 38(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

All of the Group’s investment properties were pledged to secure bank
loans granted to the Group (Note 29).

a) Fair value measurement of investment properties

j))  Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13
Fair Value Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

i)

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

AEBMAERENEFOUREE BT
HHEERSA-

ZEREYEERRKERHENATE=
FoE— P EBERNGA VB RERNE
38(b) °

AEBMARENFEHDEM ER/AN
SEERERZER (HE29) -

a) REWMELQTVENE
) RFEER

TRIRAEEREYE 2R
FE HEEREENREH
Rt D R=ZMBERATEER
(E&ERLBERMBHREERE
1R N FEFE) BEAF
Bt EDHBRE  H2RME
BEEMARBARBBRE LB
BERLAEBEMN:

o FAMAE:EERFE—
A AR (AREtER
REEEXBBERLR
W52 REAERE) 5T
B2 ATE

s FE_RHE FERAFZ
R ABIE (BIREETT &
F—R A BRG AR
R A EREARNA]
BERBABBHEZR
FETABRE AR
REFDBETIEEE
BARIE)

.« ESHEE: EREAT
TEEHAREHEY
AFE

KRMEZERERAT « 22— HF —T—AFFER
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ=—T— X <F=A=+—HIEFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
a) Fair value measurement of investment properties
(Continued)
i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continueq)

20. REWE (1)

a) REWHEQXFEE(E)

i

AFPEER(E)

Fair value measurements as at
31 March 2016 categorised into
RZB-REZA=T-HABRUTERZ

AVEE
Fair value
at 31 March
2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-E-RE
=A=t-H
ZAYE F-1& et E=;
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Group rE
Recurring fair value REMATETE
measurement
Investment properties BBRENF
in Hong Kong 24,702 - 24,702 -
Fair value measurements as at
31 March 2015 categorised into
RZE-—REZRA=+—RAPEAUTERZ
AEERGE
Fair value
at 31 March
2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZE—A%F
=A=1—-H
AN F—8 F-/ F=H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BETT
Group iS-3)
Recurring fair value KEMATLETE
measurement
Investment properties BRREME
in Hong Kong 24,778 - 24,778 -

During the year ended 31 March 2016, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or
out of Level 3 (2015: nil). The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they occur.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HZE—T—A~"F=A=1+—HIEFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

a) Fair value measurement of investment properties

(Continued)

ii) Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2
fair value measurements
All of the Group’s investment properties were revalued
as at 31 March 2016 on market comparison approach by
reference to recent sales price of comparable properties
on a price per square foot basis using market data which
is publicly available. The investment properties were
revalued by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, an independent
professional valuer, who has a recognised and relevant
professional qualification and recent experience in the
location and category of properties being revalued.
The directors of the Company have discussion with the
surveyors on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at annual reporting

20. REWE (1)

a) REWMELNTVEE(E)

i) FZARA-FEEEIGE
Bl R A 1%
AEBEMAREMEER -F
A = ST e
BOEEHMGE EP2EAE
LB MERE T REKELE
ZIREE  WRAAFZT
BBIE - REYMFEHBIER
AR &S AR A RETT
Bt BN AERA MRS
XER WHEBHMEWE K
BRETEFRREZRNL
B NEERS AHETHE
B - AN A EE 5 ELR 8 R AR Y

date. HEREZRGEESR-
21. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 21. Y EE

The Group by
2016 2015
—E—-REF —E—AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
At beginning of the year REA] - 17,538
Changes in fair value less costs to sell N EEE RS - (16,197)
Exchange movement e 5 = (1,341)
At end of the year RELL - -

The Group’s forest assets, acquired through the business combination
of Amplewell Holdings Limited (“Amplewell”) and its subsidiaries
(“Amplewell Group”), are located in the Northwest of Brazil, the State
of Acre, Amazon Region (the “Brazil Forest”). At 31 March 2016 and
2015, the biological assets represent natural tropical forests. The total
area of the Brazil Forest is approximately 44,500 hectares. Under
the environmental laws in Brazil, 20% (2015: 20%) or 8,939 hectares
(2015: 8,939 hectares) of the Brazil Forest area is the permanent
preservation area and therefore is restricted from logging. At least
80% of the remaining area is designated as the sustainable forest
management area and the balance is the permissible clear cut area
that has no restriction on felling under the environmental laws of
Brazil. In the sustainable forest management area, minimum impact
logging techniques are used and forests are managed in a sustainable
manner which means that the harvesting rate is below the overall
natural growth of the forest. The main objective in sustainable forest
management program is to ensure the substance of the forests
be preserved. The maximum logging rate allowed under relevant
regulations governing sustainable forest management is 30 cubic
meters per hectare, an average, over a 25 to 30 year harvesting cycle.

NEBFEBEHHTRIZERAR AR ([h
BDREKRBRAR (DHRER]) 22
BEB 2 M EEM N E L3 2 o8
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INEEs N == aaas = F = —
B AW EEERABETIN - BN
A FE A B44,5008 E - B IEE T 2
RRZE BAZMEEZ20% (=ZF
—AFE:20%)K8,939 /B (ZZE—F
F : 8,939 N ) Bk AIRER  BREE
b 5 B 3 TT AR £K o 81 T 80 B 5 1°80%
HEEABERMEER REEH
IRIRIE - B8 B B I AR Hil 2
KE-EAHBEAMNEEHEAN  BF
PR S IE 822 7 RIK BT MARMRTY
AR 2 H VB IR - R L R R
RARMEERARERIEE - Al EHRMN
B E 2 = Z B W BRBRRZFMAZ
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE_Z— R F=HA=+—HBILFE

21. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Continued) 21. £EYPEE (&)

On 27 March 2012, the board decided to suspend harvesting
operations in Acre for 1 year until the operating environment for
Universal Timber Resources do Brasil Ltda. (‘UTRB”), a subsidiary
within the Group, is improved. UTRB and its staff had been harassed
by the alleged agent (“Alleged Agent”) of a main contractor (“Main
Contractor”) in the tree felling service project in Rondonia. Not only
was the tree felling service project adversely affected by the Alleged
Agent, he also created a difficult and hostile environment for UTRB
and its staff in Brazil. Since the harassments began in February 2011,
the Alleged Agent harassed UTRB’s staff and their family with death
threats in numerous instances. The Group’s employees especially
in Brazil were scared and UTRB had experienced high turnover of
personnel. As such, it was decided to suspend harvesting operations
in Acre to address the concerns of its staff.

For the year ended 2015, the Group recorded a revaluation loss
on biological assets of approximately HK$16,197,000 primarily
attributable to the decrease in log prices of which decreased with a
range of 3% to 6% during the year.

As at 31 March 2016, the fair value of the biological assets was zero
(2015: zero) and there were no revaluation gain or loss on biological
assets for the year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HZE—T—A~"F=A=1+—HIEFE

21. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Continued)

The forest engineer adopted the following methodology in determining
the harvestable area of the Brazil forests in the technical report used
for the 2014 valuation. This methodology or standard (Modeflora —
Digital Model of Forest Exploration) was developed locally in Brazil by
Embrapa (Brazilian Enterprise for Agricultural Research). Adoption is
not mandatory by the state but recommended to the forest engineer
professionals.

During the valuation process, Greater China Appraisal Limited (“GCA”)
referenced to a technical report on estimation of quality and quantity
of commercial and potentially commercial wood species and residues
resulting from the forest exploitation issued by CAAP FORESTAL
(“CAAP”). CAAP performs only once diagnostic sampling for the
whole farm area under current State regulation. 100% census of the
inventory will be performed inside each unit of production area in order
to obtain new operating license for each unit of production area. In
general, it is common practice by forest engineers to assume there
is no change in the forest inventory as the tropical natural forestry
asset is very stable within five to ten years, so there is not necessary
to perform detailed sampling every year. Rain forest is a long lasting
asset if without human intervention (Amazon forest is estimated to
have existed for some 10 million years). Temporary hostile climate, e.g.
strong wind, heavy rain and flooding do not change the natural habitat
of the forest. Disease and fire might affect the forestry assets, but to
the best knowledge of the Company, no known fire and abnormal
wood disease were reported during the periods covered under the
valuation. Temperature might affect the quality/volume of the forestry
asset, but in a long term prospective (which usually over decades)
instead of affecting within a short period of time.

Notwithstanding the above, CAAP obtains satellite image of the farms
in August every year with spatial resolution of 15 m (49 ft). This is to
recognize if there is any abnormal situation (e.g. sudden large scale
clearing/disappearing of trees) in the farms. It indicated that any object
or abnormality with 15 m in size will be shown on the satellite image.
CAAP also monitors the daily updates on burns and fires in Brazil
forest area: http://www.inpe.br/queimadas/.

The Brazil Forest was independently valued by GCA, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group. GCA
has experience in valuing similar forestry assets. The key consultant
involved in this valuation being a Certified Valuation Analyst of the
International Association of Consultants, Valuators and Analysts,
and has no present or prospective interest in the Group’s biological
assets and no personal interest or bias with respect to the Group. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, GCA is independent and
competent to determine the fair value of the Group’s biological assets.
As the value of the biological asset is determined by the ability to
generate a stream of benefits in future, GCA has adopted a discounted
cash flow methodology in valuing the Brazil Forest. The following are
the major assumptions used in the valuation:

21. EYEE (&)
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21. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Continued)

a logging volume of 21.5 m® (2015: 21.5 m® per hectare in the
sustainable forest management program area.

a pre-tax discount rate of 16.61% (2015: 17.26%) based on the
data and factors relevant to the economy of Brazil, the industry
of forest business and the harvestable resources in the Brazil
Forest, and the weighted average cost of capital.

harvesting activities for the first 30-year cycle will resume from
the calendar year of 2016 and complete in 8 years (2015: 8
years). Revenue or costs from subsequent harvesting cycle are
not taken into account.

average logs price growth at a rate of 3% per annum (2015:
3% per annum) in the next 8 years (2015: 8 years) which is the
expected long term growth rate estimated by reference to the
Consumer Price Index in USA.

the cost of revenue mainly includes forest planning and
management, staffing costs, felling and skidding costs, loading
and transportation costs, tallying and pointing costs, harvesting
overhead costs, issue of forest origin document costs, annual
operating license fees and cost of harvesting residues. The cost
of revenue is assumed to increase in-line with the long term
growth rate of 3%, which is based on the long term inflation rate.
The market price is based on the market quotations of log sale
prices provided by the management.

Forest Stewardship Council (the “FSC”) certification
demonstrates fulfillment of social and ecological criteria, while
increasing the prices achievable for timber products. As the
directors changed the operation model, the Group will not obtain
the FSC certification in 2015 and 2016, and the Group cannot
enjoy a price premium of 15%.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the harvesting operation in the
Brazil Forest remained suspended. As the business environment
continued to be difficult for the Group in Brazil, the board of directors
of the Company changed the operation model in the Brazil Forest from
own harvesting to leasing out the forest in Brazil so as to enhance
the income stream of the Group in 2016. The valuer considered that
the valuation for the biological assets should be prepared from the
perspective of market participants and the valuer cannot validate the
feasibility of leasing of the forest which might have been affected by
the Group’s own business strategy, and accordingly, disregarded
the leasing of the Brazil Forest in conducting the valuation for the
biological assets.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HZE—T—A~"F=A=1+—HIEFE

21. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Continued) 21.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of
the Group’s biological assets which are categorised as a Level 3 of fair
value measurement hierarchy:

Quoted
prices in
active
markets
(Level 1)
ERTZHRE
(B-%&)
HK$'000
BT

EMEE (8

AFEER
TRIUPAREMENBEL ATEHE
SR PERDTENBSREZR:

Fair value measurement using
EATHIBE 2 ALETE

Significant Significant
observable  unobservable
inputs inputs

(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EXTHE EATAER
BAHE BAHE

(F=H) (5=8) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT

As at 31 March 2016 R=B-AE=A=1-H
Recurting fair value measurement for: &M ATETE : £MEE
Biological assets -

As at 31 March 2015 R=ZB-EF=B=t—H
Recurring fair value measurement for & ® AT ER 2 AMEE
Biological assets =

During the year ended 31 March 2015 and 2016, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of
Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer between levels of
fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period in which they
occur.

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorized within Level 3
of the fair value hierarchy:

RBE_T-—HFER_T-—N~F=4
=t -BHUEFE - F-REFE KM
WEEE EE = RBARBEL - A&
B BERRNATFESRZMEEER
ZRERREREHAES -

DERAFESRE=R 2 TVEFE
R -

2016 2015
—E-XEF —E—AfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Net carrying amount at 1 April RUA—BZREFE - 17,538
Exchange movement bE H & &) = (1,341)
Changes in fair value less costs to sell N EE R LS - (16,197)
Net carrying amount at 31 March R=ZA=+—BZEEFE - -
Fair value change relating to assets held RERBEBEEEZ
at the end of period N EES) - 16,197
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21. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Exchange movement of biological assets is recognized in other
comprehensive income in “exchange fluctuation reserve”.

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated using
assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of ownership over
the asset’s life. This method involves the projection of a series of cash
flows on an asset interest. A market-derived discount rate is applied to
the projected cash flow in order to establish the present value of the
income stream associated with the asset.

The directors of the Company have discussion with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at annual reporting date.

The Group is exposed to a number of risks related to its natural forest.

(i) Regulatory and environmental risks

The Group is subject to laws and regulations in Brazil in which
it operates. The Group has established environmental policies
and procedures aimed at compliance with local environmental
and other laws. Management performs regular reviews to identify
environmental risks and to ensure that the systems in place are
adequate to manage those risks. The Directors are not aware of
any environmental liabilities as at 31 March 2015 and 2016.

(i) Supply and demand risk

The Group is exposed to risks arising from fluctuations in the
price and sales volume of logs. When possible the Group
manages this risk by controlling its harvest volume, according to
market conditions. Management performs regular industry trend
analysis to ensure the Group’s pricing policy is comparable to the
market and the projected harvesting volumes are consistent with
the expected demand.

Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2015/2016
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The goodwill arising from the acquisition of the sustainable forest management cash
generating unit in the prior years represented its expected future profitability.

As at 31 March 2014, goodwill relating to sustainable forest management segment
had been fully impaired as detailed below.

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #H#ZE_Z— R F=HA=+—HILFE
22. GOODWILL 22 EHE
Manufacturing
Sustainable and sale of
forest timber
management products Total
(Note i) (Note ii)
A EHE R HERHEE
EEEK AMER st
(Hiazi) (Hietii)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT BETIT BETT
Cost 2Z:S
At 1 April 2014, RZZ—MFMA—H-
31 March 2015 and = e e o M
31 March 2016 == === 1,686,883 358 1,764,236
Accumulated impairment Z5HRE
At 1 April 2014, R-ZZE—WFEMA—H"
31 March 2014 and “T-NE=ZA=F+—HEK
31 March 2015 s = Ff =qp—g 1,686,883 2853 1,764,236
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 March 2016 R=ET—_A&E=A=1+—H - - -
At 31 March 2015 R-ZE—FHF=A=1+—H - - -
Notes: HiaE
()  Sustainable forest management i) AFERNER

BIE AR FE R UGB AT 45 AR B IR R TG P EE A
Z BN SRS BAE R ARRRA TR

R-ZB—MFE=F=+—R0 AEHERNE
BZEESEBBRE FENT -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 &% —

e = HETE

22. GOODWILL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(U]

(i)

Sustainable forest management (Continued)
Recoverability assessment at 31 March 2014

On 27 March 2012, the board of directors of the Company decided to suspend
harvesting operations in Acre, Brazil until the operating environment for its
Brazilian subsidiary improves. Up to the date of approval of financial statements,
the harvesting operation in Acre, Brazil remained suspended. As the business
environment continued to be difficult for the Group in Brazil, the board of directors
changed the operation model in Acre from own harvesting to leasing out of the
forest in Brazil so as to enhance the income stream of the Group.

No lease relating to the Group’s forest in Brazil had been entered into by the Group.
The directors of the Company considered the economic value of the future income
stream from leasing out the Group’s forest cannot be reasonably assessed at the
date of approval of financial statements 2014. The Group had to preclude the
economic value of the future income stream from leasing out of the Group’s forest
from measurement of the fair value of the CGU for prudence.

The Group engaged an independent professional valuer to perform the valuation
for the fair value of the CGU. The original business plan regarding the operation
was assumed to be changed. The valuer cannot validate the feasibility of leasing
business. There was no reliable projection for the business and income approach of
the valuation methodology of the business value cannot be used.

In assessing the valuation of the CGU, the valuer adopted the asset approach,
which was breaking the CGU into pieces, i.e. the freehold land (included the naked
land, pastures and betterments) and the biological assets, so the business value
was the sum of them. The valuer adopted the market approach for the freehold land
and adopted the income approach based on the projection developed based on the
market participant’s point of view for the biological assets.

The fair value less cost of disposal of the CGU valuation was approximately
HK$169,076,000 which included the fair value of the biological assets and the fair
value of freehold land at 31 March 2014. During the year ended 31 March 2014, an
impairment loss of goodwill of approximately HK$302,118,000 had been recognized
in the profit or loss and the goodwill had been fully impaired. The fair value on
which the recoverable amount based on was categorised as a Level 3 fair value
measurement.

Manufacturing and sale of timber products

The goodwill of approximately HK$77,353,000 arising from the acquisition of
Originate Tech Global Investments Limited and its subsidiaries represented the
future economic benefits from the synergy effect of the business combination.

The entire value of manufacturing and sale of timber products as a cash generating
unit was considered impaired as of 31 March 2012, and an impairment loss on
goodwill of approximately HK$77 million was recorded.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HZE—T—A~"F=A=1+—HIEFE
23. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES 23. B AR ER
Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: MEARFERENT:
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
registration and Form of issued and Proportion of Principal
Name business legal entity paid up capital ownership interest activities
R/ ERR BRTR FRED
8 EXNE EERRZEA BRBAFR 4] TEXH
Group’s Held
effective by the Held by a
interest ~ Company  subsidiary
rEE — R
EREE A0AKE  DEKA
Amano Holdings Limited (Note (j) Cyprus Limited liability company 1,000 ordinary shares of Euro1 100% - 100% Inactive
(Hi3E0) ERRE ARAR each TEEx
1,000 X BREREEIRT
Amplewell Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands  Limited liability company 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100% - 100%  Investment holding
MRERERAR EBRUHE ARAH 1REBREREE £T REER
Anex International Management Limited Hong Kong Limited liability company 1 ordinary share 100% 100% - Human resources management
ZETERERARAT &E ARAF 1RERR AERER
Great Path Limited British Virgin Islands  Limited liability company 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100% 100% - Investment holding
RRARAT EBRLHE ARAF IRERREREEIET REER
New On Creation Limited Hong Kong Limited liability company 10,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
MZEZBRAT &B ARAT 10,0008 & & REER
Originate Tech Global Investments Limited British Virgin Islands  Limited liability company 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100% = 100% Investment holding
BIRMRIRRERRAR EBRUHE ARAH REBREREEIET RERR
Susfor-Oasis Timber (Zhongshan) Co. Ltd.” China Limited liabilities company Paid up registered capital of 100% = 100%  Timber and wood products
PRGN AEFRA T e ARAF RMBS5,091,000 trading
BHREMER AHBARERER
AR %5,001,0007T
Universal Timber Resources do Brasil Ltda. Brazil Limited liability company ~ BRL12,646,996 100% - 100%  Sustainable management of and
(‘UTRB") ([UTRB]) Bf BRAT 12,646,096 53 f investment in natural forests,
timber and wood processing,
timber trading and timber
sales, marketing and tree
feIIing services
ARATHEEEREE . A
MMM I AHEE K
HHERTAREARKA
MR
Applause Global Limited British Virgin Islands  Limited liability company 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100% 100% - Investment holding
EBRUHE ARAE 1REBREREE 2T REER
Good Magic Limited British Virgin Islands  Limited liability company 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100% = 100%  Investment holding
EERLER ARAT IREBREREE XL REAER
View Concord Holdings Limited Hong Kong Limited liability company 1 ordinary share 100% 100% - Investment holding
RESEARAT &k ARAF 1RERR REER
KRMEZERERAT « —T—AF T 1"EFR
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ=—T— X <F=A=+—HIEFE

23. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

23. B EER (&)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Continued)

MEBARFBMT : (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
registration and Form of issued and Proportion of Principal
Name business legal entity paid up capital ownership interest activities
R/ ERR BRIR RAER
ZR EXHE HEREZFA BARBAFS i/l TEXH
Group’s Held
effective by the Held by a
interest ~ Company  subsidiary
REE B8
EREE A0RKE AR
Elite Sign Investments Limited Hong Kong Limited liability company 1 ordinary share 100% - 100%  Investment holding
ERHRERRAA &k BRAR 1R E AR RERR
Champ Country Limited Hong Kong Limited liability company 10,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100% Leasing of properties
ERARAR &B ARAR 10,0008%% B IEL
Bluestone Investment Limited Hong Kong Limited liability company 10,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100% Leasing of properties
ERREERAR B ARAH 10,000 & B NEEE
Travel Inn Limited Hong Kong Limited liability company 500,000 ordinary shares 95% - 95% Travel and travel related
TREEBRAR A BRAR 500,0001% % % business
TR KRR £ 75
Asset Bridge Development Limited Hong Kong Limited liability company 1 ordinary share 100% - 100% Money lending business
EMERERAA A ARAR 1RERR EREH
Metro Charm Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands  Limited liability company 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100% = 100%  Investment holding
BESEARAR AERAES BRAR RS RREREEIET RERR
Righteous Arena Limited British Virgin Islands  Limited liability company 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100% - 100% Dormant
EERTHS ARAR 1RERREREEIET BEEEY
& The English translation of Chinese name is for identification purpose only. : R TR ECE R E R ER A

= Wholly-foreign owned enterprise registered in China.

Note:

@ The subsidiary is applying for deregistration.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

AR SRR M
HE-T AT=A=t BL&E

24. INVENTORIES 24. 78
2016 2015
—EB—RF —E—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
HtaE BET T BT IT
Sawn timber SEM @ - 489
Finished goods LIRK 0h () 73 317
73 806
Notes: Hiat -
(@  The sawn timber was purchased for trading purpose. @ SEMIOREBEREMEA-
(o)  These inventories were held for further processing or sale. b)) ZEFEFAEE—ITMINHEERSE-
(c)  The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is as follows: © EBERRHAIZEESESTEAT:
2016 2015
—E-XE —T—AfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Write down of inventories (Note (i) WO & () 1,047
Reversal of write down of inventories (Note (i) BRIMORES (M) (1,105)
= (58)
Carrying amount of inventories sold EETEREE 1,820 2,860

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2016, obsolete and slow-moving inventories
approximately HK$Nil (2015: HK$1,047,000) were identified and written down
to their net realisable value.

(ii) The reversal of write down of inventories made in prior years arose due to an
increase in the net realisable value as a result of the sales occurred during the
year.

[0) Hgm et NeE S B = e S
EHAESBEABET T (ZS—RF
751£1,047,0007T ) 2 PRE RABHEEFE
IR EE A ZHFE

() BRENLERFEEELZERFE

0 Bt B EFEEL 2 7 SR
R -

KRMEZERERAT « 2 —RHF —T—AFFR

115



116

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

]

A SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ=—T— X F=A=+—HIEFE

25. LOAN RECEIVABLES

25. EWER

2016 2015

—E—REF =

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BEEFIT

Loans to customers B ERFER 82,000 92,800
Accrued interest receivables FEETFI B W FR0R 338 812
82,338 93,612

Less: impairment loss recognised - BEERREEE - -
82,338 93,612

All loans are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. The loan receivables
carry effective interests ranging approximately from 6.5% to 10.5%
(2015: 6.65% to 11%) per annum. A maturity profile of the loans
receivables (net of impairment loss recognised, if any) at 31 March
2016 and 2015, based on the maturity date is as follow:

FTEERYHRBEAE BRERZRE
BRAIRET B FRRIFELHHEEESE
1052 (ZZ—HF: 6.65EE11E) -
RN-E—RNER_ETE—FE=R=+—
B EWEZ (KB ERRERRE !
B)ZEHES TR EN T EIEA:

2016 2015
SF Py —T-HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT IT
Current assets B E

Within one year = A 82,338 93,612

Non-current assets IEREBEE
Over one year but within two year BB —FERARERN - -
82,338 93,612

At 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015, the loans together with the
accrued interest are secured by personal/corporate guarantees, and/or
the pledge of customers’ properties and/or their specific investments
and loans receivable.

The directors of the Company considered that the estimated fair value
of the collaterals and guarantees exceeded the carrying amounts of
the respective loans and the accrued interest receivables at 31 March
2016 and no impairment on the loan receivables and accrued interest
receivables were considered necessary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

25. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(@) Loan receivables that are not impaired
The aging analysis of loan receivables that are neither individually
nor collectively considered to be impaired are as follows:

sre ISR R M
HE-T AT=A=t BL&E

25. BUWERR (40)

REERE 2 B E X
R 3R 2 AR e 0 AT BE R 8 ) T 4
SREBFLBEDT:

2016 2015

—E-XREF —ZT—hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Neither past due nor impaired N 48 260 HA 7 AR (B 82,338 83,375
Past due but not impaired 10 HAB 30 £ R B

Less than 1 month past due wHDR—{EA - =

1 to 3 months past due BA—=={@A - 10,237

Over 3 months past due £ ER R R = 1 A - =

- 10,237

82,338 93,612

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
customers for whom there was no recent history of default. At 31
March 2015, loan receivables of HK$10,237,000 that were past
due but not impaired relate to an independent customer with the
pledge of customer’s property. At both reporting period ends,
management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

S 42 360 HA R 4 R (B 2 E U ERIB T
BT B NS BRE AR -
R=F hec=H=-F—FH:¢F
i BB 0 R (B 2 R R B SR S
10,237,000t —H B IR B
B WARFEZWEESER - R
AR G R AR EEE =
SWEEREE ZEERNERE
AIAZHWE - HEEEEEEA
A E R R E R -

KRMEZERERAT « 22— RHF —T—AFFR
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ=—T— X <F=A=+—HIEFE
26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26. B E 3 IR K& H B WK
2016 2015
—REF — A
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BEE I
Trade receivables JEUNE 55108 448 3,001
Other receivables (Note i) ﬁ@m%m&%ﬁw 3,011 21,828
Prepayments and deposits AR FRIE KRS 880 827
4,339 25,656
Note: Kiat
[0) The other receivables as at 31 March 2016 mainly represented the money advance 0] RZZT—RNFE=ZA=1+—H 2 EMEKR

to independent third parties. The amounts were unsecured, interest free and
repayment on demand. Other receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to other debtors for whom there was no recent history of default. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered
within one year.

(a)

Trade receivables
The aging analysis of the trade receivables as of the reporting
date, based on invoice date, which approximates the respective

TRIERENABYFE =T BN 2 R EZ%%
BRERER Tt B Y AR ERER - W
HAPNRRUE < EL U IR T AL M S AR
R E SRR AV E £ A28k - AR BN
whex SRR A E IR o

PTG FEUE 5 70 TR I A R MR TR TR
Sl IR
(@) EWEZKRE

REFEH REZHAH(HAE

B mER B A EZBRE S

revenue recognition dates was as follows: I ZBRRDITIAT
2016 2015
—EB-XE e =
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
0 to 30 days £30H - 11
31 to 60 days 31260H - 27
61 to 90 days 61£290H - 10
Over 90 days 90H A k£ 448 2,953
448 3,001
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit BRFxEFP—RABMNZKEBEREE

and letters of credit, except for new customers where payment
in advance and cash on delivery are normally required. Invoices
are normally payable between 30 and 180 days after issuance.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and
has a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.

Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2015/2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment
loss is written off against trade receivables directly.

Trade receivables that are not impaired

The aging analysis of trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as
follows:

AR SRR M
HE-T AT=A=t BL&E

26. FEWE 5 R R H A YR IE
(b) EWEZSRBZRE

BRARWE 53R 2 BERRTE
ABERCE ERARER AWK
EIFE EEEN  ARESES
B EEWE S IAME -

I 48 R 1B 2 FE WL 5 RR IR
W AR B IR AR R B E
FEIKE 5 BB 2 BREe D AT AN -

2016 2015

. S LT

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT

Neither past due nor impaired N7 #5580 B 7T SR (B - 11
Past due but not impaired EHER(E RORUE

Less than 1 month past due EHA DR —1E A - 27

1 to 3 months past due BmH—=={AA - 10

Over 3 months past due AEA=EA A E 448 2,953

448 2,990

448 3,001

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
a customer for whom there was no recent history of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
independent customer that have a good track record with the
Group for whom there was no recent history of default. Based
on past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

b 72 380 B 7 AR (B FE MR TR T
WETHENGE L EFPER-B
B HRME0 SRR (E 2 FE MR TR B 3
EFEM RERAKEBEREE
TS E R RS 8% - AT HI IR 48 R FRAC 8%
RIBAZEER ARNEEERTE
EXEE) 2SERNPE DA A
2R - MEREREBARZ
FHEMIELIRER R - AEE Y &
A EFERFTATAERSD-
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ=—T— X F=A=+—HIEFE

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 27. BERBEEEY
The Group
rE
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BEEFIT
Cash at bank and on hand, and cash and RITRFHEBEESURR
cash equivalents in the statement of MBMRRARZEE R
financial position ReEEY 59,258 50,141
Reconciliation of the cash and cash FRIGEBRERER 2B
equivalents at the end of the year in the kB e EEY 2 HEHT
consolidated statement of cash flows isset  ZA T :
out as below:

Cash and cash equivalents included inthe st AGA T BRI EKRZIRE

consolidated statement of financial position &35 & E(EY) 59,258 50,141
Cash and cash equivalents included inthe ~ st ALEMHEBIZEEZRS

assets of a disposal group (Note 12) LIRS FEY (W:E12) 660 -

59,918 50,141

Cash and bank balances denominated RAREINE2ZRE R

in Renminbi IRITREER 10 11
Renminbi is not freely convertible into other currencies. However, ARBA BB EBAEMER o A -
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and B4R AR B K e 2 SN GE B R AR I A R 4
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange i - EE RTEEEATE  NEBEES
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange Renminbi for other BEREETINEES 2 RITHEARE
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange HMGBHME -
business.
The interest rates on the cash at bank and deposits with banks ranged $R17IR & RIBITIF 302 F FE A F0.01
from 0.01% to 3.5% (2015: 0.01% to 3.5%) per annum. E=35E (=2 —HF:0.01EE35

[Z) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HZE—T—A~"F=A=1+—HIEFE

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. BN E S RERHEMENRIE
The Group
A%
2016 2015
—E-REF == meE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BtaE BT T BT T
Trade payables FERTE 558 @ 24,003 31,342
Other payables and accruals H A RIBE R ERTE A 16,746 18,238
Financial liabilities measured REHKAGTEZ
at amortised costs MBaE 40,749 49,580
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be repaid or Fr B FES & 5 3R I8 Je H b FE 1~ SR IR TR HA
recognised as income within one year or had no fixed terms of R —FAEEIERBBA  HEE
repayment. EENE -
(a) Trade payables (a) BERESZFE
An aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end of RBERR HEZAMGFE 2R
the reporting period, based on invoice date, was as follows: SBEENE S RIE 2Rk 5T
N
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

0 to 30 days 0%30H - 290

31 to 60 days 31£60H - 8

61 to 90 days 61£90H - -

Over 90 days (Note (i) 90H BAE (Hfa@)) 24,003 31,044

24,003 31,342

Note: Hat -

()  Trade payables also included approximately BRL10 million (equivalent to 0] FEfHE 3 IE R #54710,000,000F 28
approximately HK$22 million at 31 March 2016 and approximately HK$25 BEER=ZE—"F=A=+—H2
million at 31 March 2015). This sum represented service fees payable to a #975%£22,000,000t MR =ZZE—HF=
subcontractor for a tree felling service project in Rondonia, Brazil. UTRB had A =+—H Z#7%%25,000,0007T) °
disputes with the subcontractor and it abandoned the site. No further work FASBEERCREARZRIMZ
was subcontracted to them after the year ended 31 March 2011 as UTRB KARBIEE B REZRISE -
was not assigned any area for clearing by the hydropower plant of this project UTRBES B R % AR KENEZ
in the financial years ended 31 March 2015 and 2016, and no amount was S ARUTRBREZ-T—AF K
paid by UTRB either. UTRB is not aware of any claims or lawsuits filed by the — B NE=HA=1+—HIEFREE
subcontractor at the relevant courts. RHZIE R 2K N EERED BREM

EBEHZEEIE MREBE=-T—F
ZA=T+—HIEFEEARERKSE
— 4558 I{E MUTRBINIL £ X (1T
fA]FX38 « UTRBIL N &176 B 62 7 A A
BEEBR IR H 2 (T A B R A
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z_—-=

o = HEEE

29. LOANS AND BORROWINGS 2. ERREE
2016 2015
—REE —AfF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
HtaE BT T BT
Secured bank loans BHEAETER @ 11,601 12,815
Unsecured interest bearing loan from  REEFE =772 ®)
an independent third party BT EER 11,743 11,419
23,344 24,234
The analysis of the carrying amount of loans and borrowings is as ERRERZEEES AT
follows:
2016 2015
— R —AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T I
Current liabilities nREBEE
Portion of secured interest-bearing loan from 5% 5 %37 5 =75 2 5T 8
an independent third party B0 - -
Portion of term loans from banks due for el EA FANEEZRIT
repayment within 1 year BHERE S 230 428
Portion of term loans from banks due for AN —FRER CRIT
repayment after 1 year which contain a BHEFE S
repayment on demand clause (RBREREZEET) 4,069 4,855
Unsecurred interest bearing loan from KEBIE= ST
an independent third party IR EE R 11,743 -
16,042 5,283
Non-current liabilities FEnBEE
Secured bank loans BHEMEITER 7,302 7,532
Unsecured interest bearing loan from an REBILE =77 2 AR
independent third party qu/%\%f - 11,419
7,302 18,951
Total st 23,344 24,234
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29. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016

At 31 March 2015, loans and borrowings were due for repayment as

sre ISR R M
HE-T AT=A=t BL&E

20. ERREE (5)

R-ZE-—RF=RA=+—8B ExkE

follows: EAKRATHHEES:
2016 2015
ZE-ARF —ZE—hfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Secured bank loans BERRITERK
Portion of term loans from banks due AR—FRNEEZEH
for repayment within 1 year RITERE D 377 429
Term loans from banks due AR—FREEZ
for repayment after 1 year BEIRITE R
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERFR 383 437
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBRERERN 1,189 1,361
More than 5 years BiERF 9,652 10,588
11,224 12,386
11,601 12,815
Other borrowings HtEE
Portion of borrowings due AR—FRNEEZEERD
for repayment within 1 year 11,743 =
Borrowings due for repayment after 1 year B — R EEZEE
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMEA - 11,419
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBREA - -
11,743 11,419
23,344 24,234

The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates as

stipulated in the respective loan agreements

All of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of covenants. If
the Group were in breach of the covenants, the drawn down facilities
would become repayable on demand. In addition, certain of the
Group’s bank loan agreements contain clauses which give the lender
the right at its sole discretion to demand immediate repayment at
any time irrespective of whether the Group has complied with the
covenants and met the scheduled repayment obligations.

AT RE R E K R R E < TR
ERA BB EEE -

FIBRITRE ZARBA G FTARIR © i A
SEERTH CHANEEREARE
SKIEHE o hHh - AR BEHE TRITENKIH
AEENIRRETE T BT I RER
ZRVAER (ERASEERBTR
wRETEENEERR)

KRMEZERERAT « 22— RHF —T—AFFR
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE_Z— R F=HA=+—HBILFE

29. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (Continued) 2. ERREE (8)

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants, is
up to date with the scheduled repayments of the term loans and does
not consider it is probable that the bank will exercise its discretion to
demand repayment so long as the Group continues to meet these
requirements. Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity
risk are set out in Note 37(b). As at 31 March 2016 none of the
covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been breached (2015:
Nil).

All of the secured bank loans, loans and borrowings including amounts
repayable on demand, and unsecured interest bearing loan from an
independent third party are carried at amortised cost.

None of the portion of bank loans due for repayment after one year
which contain a repayment on demand clause and that is classified as
a current liability is expected to be settled within one year.

(@ The Group’s bank borrowings were secured by mortgage
over the Group’s property of approximately HK$2,882,000
(2015: HK$3,050,000) (Note 18) and investment properties of
approximately HK$24,702,000 (Note 20) in Hong Kong (2015:
HK$24,778,000).

(b) The interest expenses charged on unsecured interest bearing
loan from third party was calculated at 3% per annum. The
outstanding balances is repayable on 15 January 2017.
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AEBEERERRLETRER® M
RiIZAENHREEEHET IRR
EAKEREETZERENBR TR
T RRAIGEITE S TREREE A&
BEERPESARNE - TFIFH
RHIEE37(0) RZT—RF=A=+—
B AEEYEERBBBAEEEN
Rk (ZE—HF E) -

PIEREMRITER ERREE (B
ARMBEBREEZRB) RBYE =TT &
HIRET EER IR B R AAR -

BHAR - FREEZRTERLS
(REREREEGIEDBRRDAE
BT ER —FREN-

@ AEBEZRTEEABEIEAS
B R B BEELY S K2,882,000
TZPE(=F =R F 5
3,050,0007t) (MI5E18) RIBEE L]
75 24,702,0007T Z 1% & ¥ % (I
20 EIER(ZE—RF | B
24,778,0007T) °

b) REFE=7 2 EEIPH B EFUEL
Z M BFRSIRF N RIEAE - KIE
BESER _ZT—+F—A+AHA

i -



30. SEASONALITY OF OPERATIONS

The Group’s forest operations in Brazil is located in the Amazon and
is subject to weather conditions during the rainy season ranging
roughly from December to April each year. Forest logging activities in
the Amazon are substantially scaled down or stopped completely in
some areas. Log prices usually increase during the rainy season due

31.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T e BTSRRI R

30. XB2FHMHER
AEERBE I MEEBUNEHE
INSES e L
REFT-—AZEMA - BHEBRAKK
FHRERBRL ARNETHRRS
B RAER—BREE LA - TRk

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HZE—T—A~"F=A=1+—HIEFE

mEE—

to diminished supplies. This affects many sawmill operators that have MR DRIE b B Z HEAREE
to stock up logs and tie up significant working capital, but benefit W SRS EERARERANRRLE

forest owners who can plan ahead to reserve stock pile prior to the
start of the rainy season. The Group incorporates this seasonality in its
forest management plan to avoid supply shortage as well as to take
advantage of seasonal price differentials in logs.

BEEEES BUBAKRRMER A
wRF R WEA AR MERI BT
REE -AEEBLFHERZ AR
MERFE LB RMHEER WAIRE
RERFEHIEER RS-

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 3. ZEMBERRERZABH

OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of

financial position represents:

(@) gé&ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%iZEﬂﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁ

2016 2015
—B-RE —ZE—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Provision for Hong Kong Profits REZHAFETEE
Tax for the year - 53
Provision for PRC Enterprise Income NEZ LA B EMS TR
Tax for the year - -
Balance of Profits Tax provision WEFENERREEH
relating to prior years 2,220 25158
Exchange adjustment bE o 3R (75) 9
2,145 2,220

KRMEZERERAT « 22— RHF —T—AFFR
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N R e

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE_Z— R F=HA=+—HBILFE

31. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised:

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movement
during the year is as follows:

(b)

31. REP RN R ZAEH (40

CRAELEHEAE:

RERE AR R IR 2 BETIE
BEZHEKIS REFAZ SN
N

Consolidated statement of

financial position

FREBBMRRE
Property,
plant and Biological
equipment assets Total
n¥- BE
SET] £NEE et
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T BT
At 1 April 2014 RZE—WFEMA—H 55,605 - 55,605
Charge to profit or loss kR 31 = 31
Exchange movement b 5 & (17,004) - (17,004)
At 31 March 2015 R_Z—HF=FA=+—H 38,632 - 38,632
At 1 April 2015 R-ZZ—HFNA—A 38,632 - 38,632
Credit to profit or loss FPAEE (5,545) - (5,545)
Reclassified as liabilities of ~ EF A BAREFEZ
disposal group held for sale ~ HEAF 2 B1E (63) - (63)
Exchange movement b 5 & (3,999) - (3,999)
At 31 March 2016 RZE—AR"FE=HA=+—H 29,025 - 29,025

At 31 March 2016, the Group has tax losses of approximately
HK$68,817,000 (2015: HK$69,395,000) that are available for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
as it is not probable that future taxable profits against which
the losses can be utilised will be available for the companies in
which losses arose. The Group has tax losses of approximately
HK$17,549,000 (2015: HK$17,293,000) available for offsetting
against future profits that may be carried forward for up to five
years, for PRC enterprise income tax purpose. The remaining tax
losses do not expire under current tax legislation.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other significant deferred
tax liabilities that is required to be provided for in the consolidated
financial statements for the years ended 31 March 2016 and
2015.
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69,395,000t ) * AJEREAEIE Z A
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HEE AR ERBUR A 2 BB Al g
HELABBEAANEA  WITERER
BEFIEEE P B EMSH
mE A B 45 117,549,000
T (ZZF— A% : 117,293,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

32. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

iR e BTSRRI AT
BE-Z—RXE=-RA=1+—HILEE

32. MBaE

The Group and the Company AEERAAT
2016 2015
S =55
HK$’000 HK$’000
BYTT BT T
At beginning of the year REF 40,595 1,984
Exercise of warrants ? TIE R (153) )
Change in fair value N EEE 11,587 38,612
At end of the year REK 52,029 40,595

Notes: Hiat -

@

(i

The warrants, classified as derivative financial liabilities as not settled by a fixed
amount of cash for fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments, were
measured at fair value at each exercise date and the end of the reporting period.
The valuation was carried out by independent valuer based on Black Scholes
Option Pricing Model. The warrants will expire on 6 May 2018.

Fair value of share warrants and assumptions

The estimate of the fair value of the share warrants granted is measured based on
the Black Scholes Option Pricing Model.

(i

REEEDDEATEESREE (F RN
.Efﬁi%(f:@ﬁﬁK’/}\ﬂ%ﬁZE%ZEHQ
ARIR) BRETEAPRBREHRZ AT
Bt E - BERB(EERIZE 5 AT R AT
EEBEXET  REEEFER =2 —/\FR
ANBER-

A1 RARHE & 2 A TE R RE&

PR TR R RS 2 AT Z T I iRIR
HA—EF AT ERAG 8-

31/3/2016 31/3/2015 7/5/2013

bl S 2 BT e =4

=HI=-—H = H=:1—H EALEH

(Date of grant)

(BFRH)

Fair value of share warrants REHE B ERH RREE 2 A FE HK$0.0754 HK$0.0587 HK$0.0194

at measurement date 75 #0.07547C 75 %£0.05877C 7#5%£0.01947T

Share price & B HK$0.119 HK$0.062 HK$0.054

7B#0.1197T 75#£0.0627T 75 %£0.054 7T

Exercise price TEfE HK$0.085 HK$0.085 HK$0.0534

75#50.0857C 75 %0.0857T 75 #0.05347T0

Expected volatility JEHH IR 106.355% 205.99% 39.71%

Warrant life 52 A% 18 7% 4 58 FRARRETE F 5 2.1 years 3.1 years 5 years

2.1 314 5%

Risk-free interest rate (based on the ERERFE (REEFEAN 0.61% 0.77% 0.81%
approximate interest rates with HARR Z INEEH 2

similar life of the Foreign AR =)

Exchange Notes)

KRMEZERERAT « 22— RHF —T—AFFR
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32. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility (calculated
based on the weighted average remaining life of the share warrants),
adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Changes in the subjective input

33.

eI

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z_—%

o = HEEE

32. A E#E)

B HAOR 8 5 LA SR 08 A B (?Tzﬂxf’ﬁ
BIURE 2 IME T ORI F IR H

WL AR FEME

ZEHi‘E,HJHi

X&ﬂl“ BEEH uﬂﬁﬁk - TEHBABER

assumptions could materially affect the fair value estimate. B EFBIERNTENTEZ G
SHARE CAPITAL 33. R
Number of
Number of convertible
ordinary preferred
shares of shares of
HK$0.01 HK$0.01
per share per share
Note (i) Note (i) Total
SREE
SREE 0,012
B0.01TZ AR R
EBEREA BEREE
Kz Kz fst
Notgs '000 HK$'000 '000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Mzt TR BETT TR BT BETT
Authorised: EE:
As at 1 April 2014, R-Z-MEMA-AB-
31 March 2015, “E-EF
1 April 2015 and SEr=lE¢
31 March 2016 “E-AFMA-HR
—E-REF
=A=+-H 30,000,000 300,000 27,534,000 275,340 575,340
Issued and fully paid: BRTREBR:
As at 1 April 2014 RZZE—-MHENMA—A 1,391,796 13,918 1,508,676 15,087 29,005
Issue of new shares in BOIRBE=AH
connection with DRBEE2FRA
the February Open Offer @ 835,078 8,351 905,206 9,052 17,403
Shares issue upon exercise  IAT{F E BB AR AEEE
of ordinary share warrants B1IRA b 27 - - - -
Issue of new shares in BOEBT=AH
connection with the NRBEZFBRH
December Open Offer © 6,680,704 66,807 7,241,645 72,416 139,223
As at 31 March 2015 and R_E—AH%F
1 April 2015 =A=t—Hk
“Z-HFMA—H 8,907,605 89,076 9,655,527 96,555 185,631
Shares issue upon exercise P71 AR RN F
of ordinary share warrants ~ Z1TR& {7 @ 2,514 25 - - 25
As at 31 March 2016 RZT—AF
SH=ET=E 8,910,119 89,101 9,655,527 96,555 185,656
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

i)

(i

Ordinary Shares

The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from
time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Convertible Preferred Shares

The non-voting convertible Preferred Shares (the “Convertible Preferred Shares”)
can be converted into ordinary shares without maturity date. The Convertible
Preferred Shares shall at all times rank equally among themselves and shall upon
exercise of the conversion right attaching to the Convertible Preferred Shares pari
passu with all other shares of the Company in issue with respect of the right to any
dividends or distributions declared.

The following are the other major terms of the Convertible Preferred Shares:

In the event of liquidation, dissolution or winding up, or merger, or reorganisation
that will result in any distribution of assets of the Company to the existing
shareholders of the Company, the holders of the Convertible Preferred Shares will
receive an amount equal to 100% of the face value of the Convertible Preferred
Shares. In addition, the ranking of the Convertible Preferred Shares is higher than
ordinary shares, but lower than creditor in the case of liquidation.

The holder of each Convertible Preferred Shares shall not have any voting rights
save where the Company proposes to pass a resolution to vary the rights attached
to the Convertible Preferred Shares or for the winding up or dissolution of the
Company. The Convertible Preferred Shares shall be non-redeemable and will not
be listed on any stock exchange.

Each Convertible Preferred Share shall be convertible at the option of the holders
at any time after issue, provided that (j) any conversion of the Convertible Preferred
Shares shall not result in the aggregate voting rights in the Company held by the
relevant holder of the Convertible Preferred Shares who exercises the conversion
rights and parties acting in concert with it exceeding 29.9%, or such other
percentage as may then be the maximum percentage (to one decimal place) of
issued Shares it could then acquire without being required to make a mandatory
general offer for the shares of the Company under the Takeovers Code or (i) any
conversion of the Convertible Preferred Shares shall not result in the public float of
the Shares falling below the minimum requirements of the Listing Rules.

i

(i)

KEHEZERERAT e —F—HF —F
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33. A ()
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LIRS AR RREEITR SRS - B
RARAz BH EREBRBHER— T%&
e A EARRARR Z B EEFARAZE
Hofiz o

AR E SR

EIG AR A E R R ([ A AR B S AR
3 ]) AIEE R A EmAR - M MR EDIHIA - 7]
ﬁhﬁﬁh@ﬁ&ﬁh@%% & 2 AEfRIAR
B3R T 2 A = SRR 2 [ R A
ﬁ@T#kﬁ%hfW&Z#k%ﬁﬁ$
AMARMEERTRNDZARSFHA -

VAT 73 TR BB SR B ) 2 At 22 R AER3K

i3IS 4 B RET A6 B4
MBEEFAARBEER DK T ARABRE
PR Al AT R @ SR R 15 B A KRR S
AT RS B ST AR TET (B 100% 2 8088 = 4 -
i35 A5 AR » AR SE AR 2 AL = A iR
B ABEREREA ©

BRAEARR REHRBERBRNE TR B
BRAD PR RE M REAR R B ER A Z BN
T BERATRRELRR 2558 AEERR
SR ARERELERD A TAEE B TER
EREHFRZH LM -

BRI ESRRD 2 A ARTRNEETR
BB AR 7 5L 3 HE() AT IR ST IR D 2 (E (T 5
BT E AT R FTRRE LR
HERAEARE —BITHALRARARFEF
2B AEBIB29.9% A H E R E M E
ARBYEE ST RISE A R B R fe h sa il 1 2
EEREECEETRA RS A DL (FE
Z/NBR IR — B ) 3K (i) R HRAR B S AR 1) 2 (A
BT EEYRMN 2 ARFREER LT
Az SAIKARE °
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

@)

On 16 April 2014, the Company issued a prospectus (the “February Prospectus”)
pursuant to which the Company proposed an open offer (the “February Open
Offer”) to issue i) not less than 139,173,247 and not more than 165,665,906 new
ordinary shares of the Company (the “February Offer Shares”) at a subscription
price of HK$0.32 per February Offer Share to qualifying shareholders on a basis
of one February Offer Share for every ten existing ordinary shares held on 14 April
2014 with bonus issue of five bonus shares for every February Offer Share; and ii)
not more than 172,420,129 new convertible preferred shares of the Company (the
“February Offer CPS Shares”) at a subscription price of HK$0.01 per February Offer
CPS Share to qualifying holders of convertible preferred shares on the basis of one
February Offer CPS Share for every five existing convertible preferred shares held
on 14 April 2014 with bonus issue of convertible preferred shares on the basis of
five bonus convertible preferred shares for every existing February Offer CPS Share
subscribed. Pursuant to the announcement of the Company dated 12 May 2014
(the “May Announcement”), the February Open Offer became unconditional and
139,179,601 February Offer Shares with 695,898,005 bonus shares, 150,867,613
February Offer CPS Shares with 754,338,065 bonus convertible preferred shares
were issued on 13 May 2014. The dealing of the February Offer Shares was
commenced on the Stock Exchange on 14 May 2014. Further details of the
February Open Offer were disclosed in the February Prospectus and the February
Announcement.

During the year ended 31 March 2015 and after the February Open Offer, 125,625
ordinary share warrants were exercised to subscribe for 27,616 new ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each of the Company at a consideration of approximately HK$6,708
of which approximately HK$276 was credited to Share Capital and the balance of
approximately HK$6,432 was credited to share premium account.

On 28 November 2014, the Company issued a prospectus (the “December
Prospectus”) pursuant to which the Company proposed an open offer (the
“December Open Offer”) to issue i) not less than 371,150,205 and not more than
386,428,602 new ordinary shares of the Company (the “December Offer Shares”)
at a subscription price of HK$0.32 per December Offer Share to qualifying
shareholders on a basis of one December Offer Share for every six existing
ordinary shares held on 26 November 2014 with bonus issue of seventeen bonus
shares for every December Offer Share; and ii) not more than 402,313,634 new
convertible preferred shares of the Company (the “December Offer CPS Shares”)
at a subscription price of HK$0.01 per December Offer CPS Share to qualifying
holders of convertible preferred shares on the basis of one December Offer CPS
Share for every six existing convertible preferred shares held on 26 November
2014 with bonus issue of convertible preferred shares on the basis of seventeen
bonus convertible preferred shares for every existing December Offer CPS Share
subscribed. Pursuant to the announcement of the Company dated 18 December
2014 (the “December Announcement”), the December Open Offer became
unconditional and 371,150,205 December Offer Shares with 6,309,553,485 bonus
shares, 402,313,634 December Offer CPS Shares with 6,839,331,778 bonus
convertible preferred shares were issued on 19 December 2014. The dealing of the
December Offer Shares was commenced on the Stock Exchange on 22 December
2014. Further details of the December Open Offer were disclosed in the December
Prospectus and the December Announcement.

During the current financial year, 4,002,531 ordinary share warrants were exercised
to subscribe for 2,514,524 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 of the Company at an
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$213,735 of which approximately
HK$25,000 was credited to Share Capital and the balance of approximately
HK$189,000 was credited to share premium account.
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company terminated the share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 9 September 2002 (“Old Scheme”) and adopted a
new share option scheme (“New Scheme”) pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company at the special
general meeting held on 27 November 2009. There was no share
option granted under the Old Scheme. The principal terms of the New
Scheme are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Purpose

The purpose of the New Scheme is to provide incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operation and to recruit and retain high caliber
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the
Group and any entity which any member of the Group holds any
equity interest (“Invested Entity”).

Eligible participants

Eligible participants of the New Scheme include the Company’s
directors and other employees of the Group or Invested Entity,
any customers, supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity who, in the sole discretion of
the Board have contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of the Group or any Invested Entity.

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted under the New
Scheme must not exceed 10% of the total number of issued
ordinary shares of the Company as at the date of passing the
ordinary resolution on 11 April 2012